O

25 2= & %2 [ PR

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL
Stock Code P& X555 : 1788

2019

ANNUAL REPORT 4#

The Only Thing Does Not Change is
Changing for the Better
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Baptized in the river of time, a gemstone shines brightly
and eternally along with its dazzling and ever-changing inside.

Since our establishment, Guotai Junan International has been adhering to a prudent, pragmatic
and down-to-earth attitude to create value for clients with high-quality financial services.

While holding firm to our core value and culture, we keep moving forward. In the pursuit of
innovation, we have transformed from a traditional securities broker into a wealth management
expert with diversified businesses and remained outstanding in the capital market.

Guotai Junan International, like a gemstone, we have been through the changes and
committed to bringing you the value that lasts.
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Ernst & Young ZXREETEISEH AT Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBPIBREB1SE Fax {5 H:+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue rh{E A E221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY:

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group") set out on pages 130 to 304, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auwditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

R 9 7 il = 0H

s EAT FHERBRMNF R HE -
RESHAMEAEMBERROEBT RS
EENZH GFULFEHEREHEGEANM
BRREBETEALZAELINE
ETREN EMAFCHELEHEREHR
BEBNER - AU NS SHER
RRIMFAEHOHEE AL RER -

BMERREIT T AR E 42 KA F 5
HAMBRRAZNET] - HEEHN
B ERRGELEREAERARD
B - Bt BAINBEFTIERRERT
REBFENEEMHERREABR
BORE M &RETHBRTERF - AR
TRIAEFNER  BREEYTAEH

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

REFFEMBUTOER  REMES
MHEHRARBEREFELRERTER -

Key audit matter
HRENEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AREASHEESFTROMEHN

#a TEF M B L B8 6 8 A S

Impairment assessment on loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December 2019, gross loan and advances to
customers and its related impairment allowance amounted
to HK$13,200 million and HK$1,484 million respectively.
Impairment allowance for credit exposures at Stage 3
amounted to HK$1,477 million.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H BTEFPHNEXRKR
TRARER R EBRE R A D 5 313,2008 878 7T )&1,484
BEAET FIEREEARBERGE/IIIBEES
T o

The assessment of impairment for loans and advances to
customers and accounts receivable involves significant

expected credit loss at the reporting date, and as such is
identified as a key audit matter.
BTEPHNEREBREEBKRFBENRENGHIRE
BEURESAHCELANRHMERABREEFLERXN
HE R b5 FtREE SBRREXER -

management judgement and estimates on the amount of

The procedures we performed to address the key audit
matter included, amongst others:

BZPEYAREASTHEMATHNREFERE:

° Performed a walkthrough to understand the Group's
credit risk management policies and practices, and
assessed the Group's impairment provisioning policy
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9,
including an evaluation of management judgement
on i) the level of disaggregation of portfolios for
impairment assessment; ii) the use of appropriate
reasonable and supportable credit risk information
that is available without undue cost or effort;
and iii) the staging criteria for determining if a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

e EUFTARNUTHREEENEERARERK
KRB - XRBEEBVHERELEDEIFRAOMR
EMHEEEENRERGERER  BREMENUT
TEHNEEBHE : DANREFGENKREES
B D PN i) R A E R 0 B A A3 B R AT
RTERAEEEXFUEEERRER  Ki)E

EEERRRZSKEREMAMERSE DEFEE -
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Key audit matters (continued)

B o S IE ()

Key audit matter
BEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEFTEEEFESPRENAESD

fa TEF BB R 2508 6 8 5 15 ()

Impairment assessment on loans and advances to customers (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk
of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose.

RBERE EEEERFEANEYIRERBHD
B FHAROAR UHFEEERRESTEVN
BRAREREEM - BUEEH  EKERTEXT
VERAKBENARET  ZEHEBAAASHEER
FRMEER o

The quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis of the Group assessment
can be found in note 2.4, note 16 and note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEREMERANESEFEORTEMESTHNE
S B mMERMET24 - M 16K M 5E42 o

For assessment of impairment allowance as of 31
December 2019, we:
H_TE-NFTA=T—HOREREETERS
A

° Tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increases in credit risk
and the basis for classification of exposures into the
3 stages. Testing included assessing loan overdue
information, loan-to-value percentage or other
related indicators of increasing credit risk.

. ERAAEEEETE SRR KXEE KA
EoRIERRNOELENEE N - ARBENG
EXBHEN EXEEBEBDD L EMTE
BN EERBRZBBER -

° For loans and advances to customers classified at
stage 1, we evaluated the Group's methodology for
estimation of expected credit losses, and checked
the key model parameters to external data sources
where available, including the price volatility of
selected underlying collateral used in multiple
scenario analyses.

° HMOBRBIEBRNGETEFNERRBERME -
BPEHEESENTERERBEXGHTE
I % A8 B = 2 R B 2 B A] 13 59 S0 BF BUR KR
EITY BREZEBEAINMAEANIEEIEHE
ERmr ERIRIE -

° For loans and advances to customers classified
at stage 3, in assessing the impairment allowance
made by the Group, we examined the valuation
of the collateral and other sources of cash flows,
and developed a reasonable range of expected
cash shortfall for comparison with the Group's
assessment.

o MO BEAEIBBENATEFNERRBRME -
RAHESEELNRERER  BMERE
EHGHNEERRSRENEMKIR - L5
FEHRSRENGES®HE  UWHESENTG
EITHLE o

Assessed the Group's disclosures in relation to credit risk
in note 2.4, note 16 and note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements against the requirements of HKFRS.
HREBAV B RS ERNREFEHESMBHRRME
M4W%%&W%Q%ﬁ%%§ﬁ%%%@@%&§
a¥t o
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Key audit matters (continued)

PSR R IE (2)

Key audit matter
HREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARENESHREESTROMEHN

AR FEFEADEREF=Re) @ TAE

Valuation of financial instruments classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy

The Group assessed the fair value of the financial
instruments classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy ("Level 3 financial instruments") at the reporting
date. The Group has applied valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments
that are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques, which include significant unobservable
inputs, involve significant management judgement and
assumptions, and as such is selected as a key audit matter.
EEERBREABTRATEERAFEIR > ENE R
ARATE(EMIARIRD) EXEERMGERN
EETUTEERTSRENSMIASFIRNOATE-
ZEMERM(ARSERBELBEZ2B) P REKRE
BREHE KRR AHEKET/ABARESEFE-

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and categorised within
Level 3 amounted to HK$7,109 million and HK$7,436
million respectively, representing 12% and 22% of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value.

RZE-NFE+_A=+—HB EXERQATEFE
i E?%%%&Eﬁimﬁaﬁé)}f%%% 37,1098 & &
TTR746BEEET DR EEERAFTEHFESH
BERBENI205K%22% -

The related disclosure are included in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HEARBEH NGRS PSRRI EL2

The procedures we performed, with the involvement of
our inhouse valuation specialist, to address the key audit
matter included, amongst others:

ERAMEEZERNZ2ET  HAMRITHE ER LR
REAFTENERF B
° Performed a walkthrough to understand the Group's

policy on the valuation of financial instruments,
including independent price verification,
independent model validation and approval.

o ENFTRAENATERE %lﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂﬁﬁm
BE EREBUBREZE BURIURBRER
it

° Assessed and evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over the process for
the valuation of financial instruments.

e FELRFGERIAMEBETEFEBEOR
AHMETA ML

° Evaluated the valuation techniques, inputs and
assumptions through comparison with the valuation
techniques that are commonly used by market
participants.

e BBAEMS2EEFEANMGERKME
FHEEERT  WABEBRERR -

1TLE 8

° Assessed the validation of observable inputs by
checking with external market data.

e BEBBRMINMMBEE FEHETERHAHE
B L o

° Assessed the appropriateness of the significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models
including critically assessing management's
assumptions that net asset value is a reasonable
proxy for fair value and the selection of pricing
multiples, where relevant.

e HEAEGMERELTERNEETAEHEEH AH
BEEEN  PREBIAAEEENRRK  BE&
EFEEQNTENSEE N KIEEE R RN

HHEE) °
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Key audit matters (continued)

B o S IE ()

Key audit matter
HAEEFETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAREBNSHEESTRUOMNEHN

KR FEFAEADERE=Re) BT AIGE(E)

Valuation of financial instruments classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy (continued)

Compared the valuation results with the prior year
to assess the reasonableness of the output with our
understanding of the performance of the underlying
investments.

REEARE F—FETHEER  REMYEH
REBHRNERKF LR EBENS R -

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosure
on the fair value hierarchy and related disclosures
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements

against the requirements of HKFRS.
e HREBVBHRELEANRETEEESEER
R ESEROBE R LR BB RK M Z4260 48

ARBERERD °

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report

T 3R 4 B2 i b At £ S

EXFHEMESRE - HitEEE8%E
HHERNFRBEANEE - BETBREER
EMBHRREBEMANZBERS

BMPESRAMBERRONBRALTRE
HMEE  RANMTHZFHEMEEE
RIEFMFEANEZER

BARMBRETHRERNOEBT - &M
METEMEEMESR  ELBES
EZEHEMERREESEMBHRRA
B EETBEPABEENBELATE
EXREBHEUTFEEAHERRM
MER - EREME AT @
REMRBRBEMEEFTEEXRERR
it RPFEREZEFE - EE& /@ -
BIVRBEMKRE -



Independent Auditor’s Report
Mg S A% B R A

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

O A R R R IS
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Kwong Chun Kit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
20 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A 4H 2 e B Al 2 T W A R

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE—T-NF+-_A=t+—HIFE

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZET-N\F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FTER FAT

Revenue W &% 5 4,245,536 3,025,890

Other income Hfbug A 4,635 3,932

Revenue and other income Uz & HAth e A 4,250,171 3,029,822

Staff costs BT KA 6 (842,912) (642,853)

Commission to account executives BEETHEE (124,278) (68,894)

Depreciation e (65,078) (36,541)

Other operating expenses H &2 (1,333,166) (584,508)

Operating profit A 1,884,737 1,697,026

Finance costs & Bk AR 7 (879,294) (713,754)

Profit before tax B A5 AT A 8 1,005,443 983,272

Income tax expense Fi 15 %t B 2 9 (102,884) (134,098)

Profit for the year F R F 902,559 849,174

Other comprehensive income for the year, & P E b 2 M U 25
net of tax BRI
— Exchange difference on translation of — JNERE K EF

foreign exchange (455) 294

Total comprehensive income for the FRAEZHWEEARE
year 902,104 849,468

Profit for the year attributable to: BAEFERER :

Owners of the parent (SS/NECIEZ PN 902,619 848,651
— Holders of ordinary shares - ETEEFEAEA 895,303 796,835
— Holders of other equity instrument - HEFITEFEFA 7,316 51,816

Non-controlling interests I 12 iR #E 2 (60) 523

902,559 849,174

Total comprehensive income for the BhFARA2ENREEE:
year attributable to:

Owners of the parent ISY/NCIEZ N 902,164 848,945
— Holders of ordinary shares - EBRFEA 894,848 797,129
— Holders of other equity instrument - Hth#EZTEFEAA 7.316 51,816

Non-controlling interests JEERER (60) 523

902,104 849,468

Earnings per share attributable to BRAREERRRELER
ordinary equity holders of the parent 2
— Basic (in HK cents) — EARAABMWED 11(a) 11.7 10.5
— Diluted (in HK cents) — 858 (LAAED) 11(b) 11.7 10.5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ak 1 B 25 5K U0 2%

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NFE+-A=+—H

2019
ZB-NF

HK$'000
THER

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
FHE T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mME - BFERZE 12 508,939 471,644
Goodwill and other intangible assets EEREMEREE 13 22,386 3,195
Other assets B & E 14 8,526 5,531
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 15 267,316 129,807
Loans and advances to customers BTEFPHER MR 16 947,521 2,338,830
Bank deposits RITER 23 66,440 =
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABSENSRE

profit or loss BE 20 7,862,292 4,333,237

— Financial assets held for trading - BFIEEERKED

and investments TREE 1,594,507 =

— Financial products - 2REEEM 6,267,785 4,333,237
Total non-current assets ERBEEHEE 9,683,420 7,282,244
Current assets REEE
Loans and advances to customers BTFTRFPHNERR B K 16 10,768,381 9,936,545
Accounts receivable JfE Uk 5% 18 18 4,151,021 5,347,223
Prepayments, deposits and other FERFIE - e REMER

receivables FRIA 19 269,799 322,421
Financial assets at fair value through RATFEFAEZNER

profit or loss BE 20 51,128,906 43,528,232

— Financial assets held for trading and - RBIEEERKRENS R

investments BE 19,286,647 15,019,421

— Financial products - SREEEM 31,842,259 28,508,811
Derivative financial instruments MTEEMIA 21 155,652 76,832
Receivable from reverse repurchase [ 150 [B] 8 175 25 B U 3K 38

agreements 22 2,247,913 3,109,006
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 75 18 236 6,131
Client trust bank balances EFEETHHRTE&% 23 11,181,982 14,319,985
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEEEY 23 7,150,847 4,105,672
Total current assets RBEEHT 87,054,737 80,752,047
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As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H

2019
ZB-NF

HK$'000
TAER

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
FHBT

Current liabilities nBEE
Accounts payable JE 1+t FR 3B 24 (14,587,372) (18,883,841)
Other payables and accrued liabilities EMEMRENMETAR 25 (584,126) (537,400)
Derivative financial instruments MESMT A 21 (149,851) (23,620)
Interest bearing borrowings AT 2B K 26 (11,226,513) (9,441,083)
Debt securities in issue BERITEEES 27 (25,819,688) (21,158,094)
— At amortised cost — R (5,128,330) (6,721,259)
— Designated at fair value through - BERATEFAER
profit or loss (20,691,358) (14,436,835)
Financial liabilities at fair value through R AFEFFABZNE &
profit or loss afE 28 (6,810,580) (8,731,117)
Obligations under repurchase agreements [0 88 17 3% (& 8 29 (18,199,226) (13,156,517)
Tax payable FE A B IR (243,323) (67,159)
_Total current liabilities nBafeE (77,620,679)  (71,998,831)
_Net current assets RBEEFE 9434058 8,753,216
_Total assets less current liabilities REREEARADOEER 19117.478 16,035,460
Non-current liabilities kRBAERB
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAAE 15 (2.429) =
Interest bearing borrowings FEE R 26 (23,368) =
Debt securities in issue BEEITEBES 27 (7.679,894) (4,841,178)
— At amortised cost — FR S PR R (1,555,874) =
— Designated at fair value through - BERAFEFAER
profit or loss (6,124,020) (4,841,178)
e (7.705.691) | (4.841178)
Net assets EEFE 11,411,787 11,194,282
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ak 1 B 25 5K U0 2%

As at 31 December 2019
RZZ-NE+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AHF ZE-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT THE T
Equity =
Share capital fi% 7 31 8,125,856 8,125,856
Other reserve E th % 5 35 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve B E (1,110) (655)
Share-based compensation reserve U EEREERE 56,089 66,186
— Share option reserve - BRERE 32 30,513 37,816
— Share award reserve — & 1D RS 33 25,576 28,370
Shares held under the share award ZRx M BT B F ARG
scheme 34 (73,058) (142,051)
Metewed proffies ReEwsM SAZEUT . WOUE058
Equity attributable to holders of the T AR AR R PR G
ordinary shares 11,295,924 10,831,931
Equity attributable to holders of other HihEm TAFA ARG
SO WOSEORAENE (. - H07E
Equity attributable to owners of the BRRHE ARG EZR
parent 11,295,924 11,182,715
on-contolling eests MRS R 11567
Total equity ERAE 11,411,787 11,194,282
Dr. YIM Fung Mr. LI Guangjie
Mg E L ERARE
Director Director
EE EBE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE—T-NF+-_A=t+—HIFE

Share

capital  reserve

Other translation

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Share
option
reserve

Currency

reserve

Share
award
reserve

Shares
held under
the share
award
scheme

Other
equity
instrument

Retained
profits

Non-
controlling

Total interests Total equity

R EfbEE 1 1 R I4 i ]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  Thr TEr  TiEn Thr TEr Térn FEr TFErn  TiEn
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\§
—A-Bi&s 6,118,060 (1,236,460) (949) 40769 24204 (181281) 3,843,743 2346794 10,954,880 11,044 10,965,924
Total comprehensive income for ~ ERZANEAE
the year - - 294 - - - 796835 51816 848945 523 849468
Shares issued upon placement of  EERAMEITH
shares (note 31) Tt (B £31) 1992,848 - - - - - - 1992,848 1992,848
Recognition of equity-settled BRINE & 5t 5L
share-based payments R AERMAR
(notes 32 and 33) (B 3E32R33) = = = 5297 69,471 - - - 74768 - 74768
Purchase of shares held under the BB R £ B3t E
share award scheme BT fENRA
(note 34) (PH3£34) - - - - - (2519) - - (52579 - (52579
Vesting of shares for the share ki By 2 5
award scheme BRf
(notes 33 and 34) (K33 R34) - - - - (65305 91809  (30,364) - (3.860) - (3.860)
Shares issued upon exercise of BRENEET
share options under the share TRERE
option scheme & TRRHA
(notes 31 and 32) (B 331R32) 14948 - - Bm) - - - - nm - nm
Transfer of share option reserve ~ BREXUMES
upon the forfeiture of share B ERE
options - - - (4419 - - 4479 - - - -
Perpetual securities distribution - - - - - - - (66731  (66,731) - [66731)
Perpetual securities repurchase , - - - - - - - (1,981,095) (1,981,095) - (1,981,095)
Final dividend for 2017 XH=E-tFERH
K = = = = = - [343960) - (343,960) - (343,960)
Interim dividend for 2018 IHZF-NFHE
(note 10) R E (W10 - = = = = - (251678) - (251678) - (251678)
Balance at 31 December 2018 and ~ R=Z—/\%
at 1 January 2019 +-A=+-HR
Z2-NF
—B-Bf &5 8,125,856 (1,236,460) (655) 37,816 28370 (142,051 4019,055 350784 11,182,715 11,567 11,194,282
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
54 W 35 5 ) ¢

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NFH+-_A=1T—RHILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BARREEAREES

Shares
held under
Currency Share Share the share Other Non-
Share Other translation ~ option ~ award  award Retained equity controlling Total

capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  scheme  profits instrument Total interests  equity
RO %E
HFEET
EREE BRE RGXB kAN b FER
Bx Hfbff & f% f% R REEFA IR @t Bi ERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAzn T#n TEn Tz T#Ezx TEx Tz TEx TEz TExn TExn

Balance at 31 December 2018 and ~ RN=Z—-N\&F
at 1 January 2019 TZRA=1+-Ak

—A—HEEH 8125856 (1,236,460) (655) 37816 28,370  (142,051) 4,019,055 350,784 11,182,715 11,567 11,194,282
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZAREEE

the year - - (4s9) - - - 895303 7316 902,164 (60) 902,104
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HKBRA
(note 44) (B &t44) - - - - - - - - - 104,356 104356
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREN
share-based payments RABEBHNTR
(notes 32 and 33) (Bt 5E32R33) - - - 6798 5735 - - - 64123 - 64123
Purchase of shares held under the 5 E k17 &2 Bzt &l
share award scheme ETHANRR
(note 34) (Fr&E34) - - - - - (4004) - - (4004) - (4,004)
Vesting of shares for the share e R
award scheme FBRH
(notes 33 and 34) (F3E33%34) - - - - (6019 72997  (16,632) - (3754) - (3754)
Transfer of share option reserve  BREXAMER
upon the forfeiture of share BERERR
options - - - (14101) - - 14101 - - - -
Perpetual securities distribution - - - - - - - (99600 (9,960 - (9.960)
Perpetual securities repurchase/
redemption - - - - - - (12,914) (348,140) (361,054) - (361,054)
Final dividend for 2018 (note 10)
- - - - - - (152,995) - (152,995) - (152,995)
Interim dividend for 2019
(note 10) - - - - - - (32131 - (32131 - (32131
Balance at 31 December 2019 ﬁ@:?*ﬂ@riﬂ
=+-H#&H 8125856 (1,236,460) (1,110) 30,513 25576 (73,058) 4,424,607 - 11,295,924 115,863 11,411,787
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAEBEsRER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HEZT-NF+A=1+—HIFE

Notes

Y 5

2019
ZB-NF

HK$'000
TAER

2018
—N\%F
HK$'000
TAET

Net cash flows used in operating RETHMARREFRE

activities 38 (3,786,919) (3,857,282)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHRERE
Proceeds from disposal of intangible HERTZEEMSHKIE

assets 2,260 —
Purchases of intangible assets BEEREE - (372)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE — RS B /B A ) 44 (101,803) =
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE BERRZE

equipment 12 (28,075) (28,186)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEBMARCREFE (127,618) (28,558)
Cash flows from financing activities ®WEFHRESHE
Net proceeds/(repayment) from bank RITEZFAEZE (BXR)

borrowings ikl 1,760,027 (4,340,638)
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities Z£{TE 5 E 515 RN IAE 37,851,469 41,681,076
Repayment of debt securities BEEBES (31,866,619) (30,866,323)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares E AL SR D M BITRD PTG

upon placement of shares FRIEF R - 1,992,848
Repurchase/redemption of perpetual A EE -

securities (361,054) (1,981,095)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares FER R T m TR

upon exercise of share options Fr 15 3K 38 % 58 32 - 11,177
Distribution on other equity instrument ~ Ef# R T A5k (9,960) (66,731)
Dividend paid to shareholders A P R R B (478,060) (599,498)
Purchase of shares held under the share 8 & B {p E @) =T &1 B T~

award scheme AR5 34 (4,004) (52,579)
Principal portion of lease payments &R E’J$’£*I3 (22,023) =
Interest portion of lease payments &~ e F 2 E 5 (1,862) =
Net cash flows from financing activities %ﬁﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁfﬁim;)‘% 2 6,867,914 5,778,237
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBEESEYEMFRE

equivalents 2,953,377 1,892,397
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHIHRERREEED

of year 4,001,198 2,108,512
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ER& )5 £ F %

net (441) 301
Effect of impairment allowance on cash HEHE YRS K

and cash equivalents, net ReSEBYNTE TR (244) (12)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRREESRESZEY

year 6,953,890 4,001,198
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEBR4ERER
Year ended 31 December 2019

RE-T-AE+-A=+—AILER

2019 2018
= A

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TET FE T

Analysis of balances of cash and cash BRERRELZEBEYHNE &

equivalents 72
Cash and bank balances 5 & MR 17 4 6k 23 5,857,542 3,896,502
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHREREBATE =@A

maturity of less than three months B R K E B 1F K

when acquired 23 1,096,348 104,696
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the #R&ERESRERFI 2

consolidated statement of cash flows BeRBSEEY 6,953,890 4,001,198

Non-pledged time deposits with original 17 X EF R EI Hi B 42 18 = &
maturity more than three months, but A BERNR—FHRER

less than one year when acquired E B FER 23 196,957 104,474
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in A B KRR KA Z

the consolidated statement of financial RekReEFEEYD

position 7,150,847 4,105,672
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 o B ik

31 December 2019
—EF-hEFt=A=+-8

138

Corporate and group information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange") on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of
the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing,
financial products, market making and investments.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited
("GJSCL") incorporated in the People's Republic of China, respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as
follows:

AV &SN g

BRELZBERZERERAR (K
READRR-_ZE—TF=ANAR
BEEBRAMGHIERBEMMK L
ZEBRRA - RRBHKROR-F
—ZEELA\BEETEBERD
PRAEMR AR ([BEAZAT]) EMR £ o
ARFEMHKERENBUSEE
ERRKERI8VR AL TES EE
2718 - ARBREBEERRQF -
HMBAREZENERLL X
mE -BEER EXREBE -
TRER MOEREXRK -

ARARHEEZER AR R KR E
BRARDBIAREBRE X BB
MBI RE L ZEREGRAE
(BEREBLZEBRDERFEAR
HNBEEMAINBERELE S
BRAERAR(ERZER] -

R-ZTE—NE+=-_A=+—H " =
B ARMEIBAT :

Place of Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREGERERD L

incorporation
and business
Company name & i E 3L R Share capital Direct
NCEY BeEwy K& E#

Indirect  Principal activities

B TEXK

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Samoa/Hong Kong  HK$6,330,989,070 100% - Investment holding and provision
Limited ("GJHK") of general administration and
support services to its subsidiaries
BRER (BB BRATA BEG,/BE 6,330,989,0707 7 RERRRMEMBE ARG
((BREREE] —REERZERB
Guotai Junan International Singapore $G$9,300,000 100% - Investment holding and provision
(Singapore) Holdings of general administration and
Pte Limited support services to its subsidiaries
AR 9,300,000%T 3% 7T REZRRAEMBARRE—
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 R o B ik

31 December 2019
—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

1.

Corporate and group information (continued)

Company name
ACIEE

Guotai Junan International Asset
Management (Singapore)
Pte Limited

Guotai Junan International
Securities (Singapore)
Pte Limited

Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited

BFEZES (BB ERRA

Guotai Junan Futures
(Hong Kong) Limited
BREZHEEB)ERDA

Guotai Junan Finance
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRERHB(BE)BRAR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
AREZRERRAA

Guotai Junan Assets (Asia)
Limited

AREZEEEE(EMN)
ARADA

Guotai Junan Fund Management
Limited'
BRARESERARRA

Place of
incorporation
and business
AR R
T

Singapore
A 0%
Singapore
AR

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BA
Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

'R

Share capital
S

SG$4,200,000
4,200,000%7 J13% 7T
5$G6$3,500,000
3,500,0003 13 7T

HK$7,500,000,000

7,500,000,0007% 7

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000 7T
HK$300,000,000
300,000,0007% 7T
HK$50,000,000
50,000,000 7T
HK$50,000,000

50,000,000 7T

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/ 7t

1. ARIAEEHER 2

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AAAEERERDL
Direct Indirect  Principal activities
;3 ME TZEE
- 100%  Asset management
EEERE
- 100%  Securities brokerage and other
financial services
BAREREM SRR
- 100%  Securities dealing and broking and
provision of wealth management
services
BABERBENRREHNEE
B R %
- 100%  Futures dealing and broking
HEEERAR
- 100%  Money lending and trading in
securities
EEREFEE
- 100%  Provision of consultancy and
financial services
REBARYERE
- 100%  Asset management
EEER
- 50%  Asset management and trading in
securities
EEEBERESEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 o B ik

31 December 2019
—EF-hEFt=A=+-8

1.

Corporate and group information (continued)

Place of
incorporation
and business
Company name i BX L R Share capital Direct
NCE:R TEwy LT EE
Guotai Junan Financial Products  Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 -
Limited
BRERSRERBRAR AF 1,000,000 7T
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 -
ARELIEERAT N 30,000,000 7T
Vietnam Investment Securities Vietnam VND693,500 million 50.97%
Company
HEREZEARH AR Hi 693,500,000,000
BEE

Note 1: The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of its board of directors.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 20 March 2020.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report

N R EEE R 2

ks

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company
ARAFEGERERIL
Indirect

Principal activities
B FEEK

100%  Trading in securities

Bt

E:E Y

Fo
pill

100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking
BEAIMERIREL

- Securities dealing and broking and
margin financing

BHR RERARBE

M1 BRAKREERNRENE
BEEERZHKE  HAKHE
RRERRENEEZEENE

BREEBR

FREINEERREBAFEES
EXTBEXEIRRAKEEE
FEXIELDZARRMBAT -
EERA IHEMHBARZ
BEHEEHRRBERTE -

ZEMBRRER T _TF=
A-THREEESHERRET
%o



Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 R o B ik

31 December 2019
—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

2.1 #n B e

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (*HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, debt
securities in issue designated at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group") for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

ZEBBRRDBRBEFE G0
RE([BABEFERAE]) B
FEAEVHREEN(EEYH R
SEANEBEMBAERANE
BB WEER  FEGTEA
(BEEEHENDRRE) BB
AR ERAREE QRGP R
o BREQAFEFAREN A
EELGRAR EERQAYE
AABSENERTEBRESFUAR
TTESRIANURFETEIN
ZEMBRRERIEESLKAE
X

BRIEZBHA  ZEMBRERTD
NETZ2Y  BEBEHESOE
ERBELZTME -

fo o ik A
RAVBEREFERE_FT N
F+_A=t—HLEFENARRF
REWBRR (TXAEIAEE])
MEHK - WBARRARAE
EAHEEFNER(BREEBE
TR EXEEAXNZALZHE
WIE QB EB AR & B H A K
EEEBHRIRERANEN (AR
SEEBTRARLNATEREK
BERRIERESNRFEN) ZE
7% %[O A - BN ERAS £ o -
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Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 o B ik

31 December 2019
—E-nE+=A=t—8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform current
year's presentation.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report
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AR ERXEAERERERE
RAEAITBBARAZ BEREEX
BOERN - AIAKERFEER
BHEAHBERERFANE IR S
ZR—UIMAEEREBR - B

(@) HEWRERAHMERER
BAWEHZH:

b)) HMENRZHMELENE
RS

) AEENKREERBERSE
1 o

B 188 X B O B A #R K T AN R ]
PRAR R B R B BR A — B & 5T
BRGmEE - WERAAREAAE
ERSEHREEAREAAR
Wi —BHAEAAREEZIEH#
RILER -

1B et & H b 2w W s 6 & AR BCEB
DIBAEBER] QA HEAEANIE
TIREEAE  BIE R KB
FEREaELEMSRE - 66
AEBEKRERAARGZEME
BRARAREEENGE s
BA AXRBREREBRES
ABRE BB -

e

D

AT

AEEBRBFERBRBTR L
A =EEHNERFH—ELZ @
HIREFEEGHE DR KR E
RA - WBRRZHEERZEH (XL
EARELHIE) BAABRERS

ETUHRBFHEEH D EAR
REEMRENE —B -



Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 R o B ik

31 December 2019
—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

2.2 1 3BT B B

AEETERANFERBHRERE
REBMAT T R EERTB B

BHRELEA -

BEBUBHE
4E Bl 59557
(& 7T &)

B 5B
=R E165%

BB ER
F195%
CHEN)

BB ER
% 285%
CHEN,

&5 (BB B 75
WERE
ZE®

- BREFE23

BB IR E
A =F—aF
BoFE—|fF
R F B
2t

AFRHFEEZ
FE T8 A HFIE

HE

FFEIE - AR
EE
BELEZ
RE#Ezm

P 13 5 BE £ £
THELRE

BEREMBHRE
AR E35E -
EBPIERE
B 1158 -
EB TR
F1255 &
BB GFER
FE23FAEET
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019
—EF-hEFt=A=+-8

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28,
which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial information, the nature and impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs are described below:

(@

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where
the Group is the lessor.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report
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FFWETRERAEEERE
MBERBERESN - #7] RE&
BRBEEMBRELEANIEER
TEWMT:
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2019
—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(@

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial application of
1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with cumulative effect of initial adoption at 1
January 2019 and the comparative information for 2018 was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group
elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing the
standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the
date of initial application. Contracts that were not identified as
leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(@)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and
other equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously classified
leases as either finance leases or operating leases based on the
assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under
HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of low value assets
(elected on a lease by lease basis) and leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less (“short-term leases") (elected by class
of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as
finance costs).
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(@

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and
included in interest bearing borrowings. The right-of-use assets
were measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group included the right-of-use
assets in property, plant and equipment.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2 & 5t B 5 5% B K # %8 ()

(continued)

(@ HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) (@) HWHMHEREREIEI
WHE#)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 RZBE—NF—-—H—HHE
B &
The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January R-ZZE-NF—-—HA—B&KHA
2019 was as follows: BEBU IR EERF1695E
SRR ENT
HK$'000
FHET
Assets BE
Increase in property, plant and equipment Y - KB KR G N 53,060
Increase in total assets mAEEEM 53,060
Liabilities =N
Increase in interest bearing borrowings AT B8 SR N 51,106
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities H b JE T FRIE R E AT B & 1N 1,954
Increase in total liabilities BmaEEMm 53,060
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the RZZFE—NE—A—B88H#
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are as EEEEN-_ZT-N\F+=
follows: A=+ —HMKEERERE
ZHEBRWOT
HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments as at R=ZZ2-NF+ZA=+—-HH
31 December 2018 REBFERIE 54,043
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate RZE—NF—A—HBHME
as at 1 January 2019 T3 £ 5 KA = 4.29%
Discounted operating lease commitments RZZE-—NLF—HA—HBHEER
as at 1 January 2019 T B AR E 51,106
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R=Z-—hF-HA—HWHE
afE 51,106
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2.2 WAt BORE B K W (2

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)
(b) HK(IFRIC) — Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax (b) & w5 (15 B BF B R 4 o2
Treatments” BZEE) — #EHE23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as ‘“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption
of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has any
uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on
its intergroup sales. Based on the Group's tax compliance and
transfer pricing study, the Group determined that it is probable
that its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by the tax
authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

©

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of
a business that is a joint operation, it applies the requirements
for a business combination achieved in stages, including
remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities
of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer
remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint
operation.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early application permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as there is no transaction
where a joint control is obtained.

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control
of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the joint
operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3. The amendments clarify that
the previously held interests in that joint operation are not
remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which
it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with early application permitted.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

©

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (continued)
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (continued)

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as there is no transaction
where a joint control is obtained.

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences
of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or
events that generated distributable profits than to distributions
to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where it originally recognised
those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application
permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments,
it applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends
recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period.

Since the Group's current practice is in line with these
amendments, they had no impact on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

©

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (continued)
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of
general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies
those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019.

Since the Group's current practice is in line with these
amendments, they had no impact on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of a Business’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on
the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the
effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 C A H W A& 4 200 7 v

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 17, "Insurance Contracts”. HKFRS 17 aims at replacing the
current insurance contracts standard HKFRS 4, an interim standard
that leads to highly divergent accounting practices that exist in the
insurers' local jurisdictions. The new standard establishes the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts, with an objective to ensure that an entity
provides relevant information that faithfully represents insurance
contracts. Early application of the standard is permitted but only if
the entity also applies HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. In November 2018, the
International Accounting Standards Board (“"IASB") tentatively decided
to defer the effective date of IFRS 17 by one year to reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. At the time of issuance of
financial statements, the changes to the effective date have not yet
been finalised by the IASB. It is expected that the final change to the
effective date will also be adopted by the HKICPA to HKFRS 17. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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2.3

24

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

25 to 40 years
1 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The Group's right-of-use assets are included in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest bearing
borrowings.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of property and office equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks and rewards
incidental to of ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee Group,
other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or through
the Stock Exchange and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited,
with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss ("ECL") allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), which results in
an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset
is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from
the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the
difference as follows:

(i)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined
using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets

(7

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group's financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements, derivative financial instruments,
other assets and cash and cash equivalent.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

(i) FVOCI; or

(i)  Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on:

(i)  the Group's business model for managing the asset;
and

(i)  the cash flows characteristics of the asset.

Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages the
assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether
the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from
the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g.
financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business
model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for
these assets were collected, how the asset's performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers
are compensated.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(7

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments
to identify whether the contractual cash flows are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding' ("SPPI"). Financial assets that are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement are considered to
meet the SPPI criterion. In a 'basic lending arrangement’,
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk
are typically the most significant elements of interest. It
may also include consideration for other basic lending
risks such as liquidity risks, costs associated with holding
the financial assets for a period of time (e.g., servicing or
administrative costs) and a profit margin.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"), and that
are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised
cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by
any ECL allowance recognised and measured as described
in note 2.4(a)(ii). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in ‘Interest and similar income" using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets'
cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not designated at
FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in ‘Net investment income'.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
‘Interest income' using the effective interest rate method.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(7

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)
SPPI test: (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within ‘Net trading income' in the period in which
it arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that
were designated at fair value or which are not held for
trading, in which case they are presented separately in ‘Net
investment income'. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in 'Interest income' using the effective
interest rate method.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none
occurred during the period.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report

24 ¥E§

o

Z]

HHBCR W2 )

Bl A K AU ()
TRHEEE)

(@)

(7

DREBEREEE)
BEBEITA (&)
EREXERFEMARK
WE: (&)
BAFEFARR:
HEBHEHRALERA
FEFAREMEEK
S RENEERAY
Bt ABRFE-H
BRI A FEFAEZE
B 3 3F ) B R A X
MOMEBKRE RS
AERNBEE
TREELHHEER
mMEMmEEK SR
MIRZ WA FEIA
25 BRIFEHBAEE
RBEATFEAEHL
FFIEFEEMERT
EEA HBBERT
RHEERAFEIA
DHEN - ZFLE
BEMMNSWAKHR
BERMEEFATHE
WA

EHEEEEGEHER
BMEBRAZLE
B AKETHZ
FEEEMNE-E
MOBRBELEEHR
H) & {8 R &5 2 A 8
VT - BHLES
BEEFER HHER
WARELE -



Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 R o B ik

31 December 2019

—F-hET-A=t+-A

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's
net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic
ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group's management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group's
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when
those investments are held for purposes other than to
generate investment returns. When this election is used,
fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including
on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value. Dividends, when represent a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are
included in the ‘Net trading income' line in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i1

Impairment

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL
on accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment
fund and others and a general approach to measure ECL
on loans and advances to customers, time deposits and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost as
well as loan commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of
the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining
lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime
ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk
of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and
qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.
For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group rebuts the
presumption that there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition when financial assets
are more than 30 days past due as management considers
the probability of default is highly correlated with the
collateral value rather than the past due days.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(if)

Impairment (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired (continued)

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure
has increased significantly on an individual or collective
basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account
instrument type, remaining term to maturity and other
relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted
present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life
of the financial asset discounted at its original effective
interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
amount of the loss is recognised using a provision for
doubtful debts account.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase in
credit risk since origination, then the provision for doubtful
debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(iif)

Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new
terms are substantially different to the original terms.
The Group does this by considering, among others, the
following factors:

If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be
able to pay.

Whether any substantial new terms are introduced,
such as a profit sharefequity-based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

Significant extension of the loan term when the
borrower is not in financial difficulty.
Significant change in the interest rate.
Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
Insertion of collateral, other security or credit

enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
(i)  Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
‘new"’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective
interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation
is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including
for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition,
especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was
driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount
are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on
derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the
renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the
financial asset and recognises a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (i) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained
control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through' transfers that result in derecognition if the
Group:

(i) has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(i)  has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(@)

(6)

Financial assets (continued)
(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions is not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on
the basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the
criteria for derecognition are therefore not met. This also
applies to certain securitisation transactions in which the
Group retains a subordinated residual interest.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities held
for trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other
comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is
not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise
to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount
of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a
presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch,
in which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b)  Financial liabilities (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading purposes
or to provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management
framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the
share award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients' deposits arising from normal
business transactions. The Group has classified the clients' monies as
client trust bank balances under the current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest income on the clients' monies and recognised
corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in the
current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients' monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Hong Kong Insurance
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is not allowed to use the
clients' monies to settle its own obligation.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and the
Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains
or losses arising thereon are not included in these financial statements
as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets and its gains
or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including time deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Other assets

Other assets include, but not limited to the deposits and admission
fee paid to the Stock Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited,
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and other regulators.
They are intended to be held on a long-term basis and are stated at
cost less impairment losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

Provision of securities and futures brokerage services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the trades
are executed.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Provision of investment banking services

The performance obligation for sponsoring and certain consultancy
and financial advisory services are fulfilled when all the relevant
duties of a sponsor or a financial advisor as stated in the contract are
completed.

Revenue from sponsoring fee is recognised at a point in time when
all the relevant duties of a sponsor as stated in the contract are
completed. Certain consultancy and financial advisory services'
performance obligations are satisfied over time as services are
rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Provision of asset management services

Revenue from asset management services is recognised over time as
the services are provided. Fees for asset management services are
calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of assets managed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance period and it is
determined that it will not result in significant reversal in a subsequent
period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for
the investment funds and managed accounts.

Fund distribution activities are separate performance obligations from
the asset management and the obligation being satisfied at a point in
time upon the investors' subscription. Subscription and handling fees
relating to the distribution services are recognised at a point in time
when the services are performed and the amount is known.

Provision of wealth management service

The performance obligation relating to the insurance brokerage service
is satisfied at the point when the terms of the insurance policy have
been agreed contractually by the insurer and policyholder, and the
insurer has a present right to payment from the policyholder (the
'transaction date’).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources and other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Employee benefits

(a)  Retirement benefit scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

(b)  Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on an approved formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

(c)  Share-based payments

The Group operates two equity-settled share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,
retaining and motivating key staff members. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled
transactions”).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in the “share
award reserve" and “share option reserve" under equity, over the
period in which the performance andfor service conditions are
fulfilled in share-based compensation expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Share-based payments (continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending
business with financial institutions and the Group's customers, under
which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. The Group
maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under
the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the cash collateral
received and cash collateral placed is included in the accounts payable
and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers respectively. Fees
received or paid in connection with securities borrowing and lending
is recorded as interest income or interest expense, respectively.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

In addition, the Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby
securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date. The Group may be
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the
underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse
repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements
to resell. Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the
loan or collateral advanced in the consolidated statement of
financial position. These securities are not recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the event
of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group has the
right to the underlying assets.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The

resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person's family
and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity):

2.4 EEGEHBUORME @)

AW ()

AptmELANELZEREME
SRR REEREFER

it MEBIINEBE

HZ AR

EEINEBEROEM 2 E K S
ARSI EFRE R REME
U s R P RER

lo# Bty
ETIBERT  —7 KRS HE
AEBBERE:

(a)

%
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

3.

EONC ] YL

REREAEENHBERRE - &
BEAFLeZE ks  Ax
BENRABENC 2R HE
B ER A R R A BB FE A A
hEt R B& - ZFMR LA
THEEARAEEBRKRAHE X
N EMEEBENKREEE
HEXHE -

Judgements H B

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, REBAEEEHRERB/REF
management has made the following judgements, apart from those BRI RMEFN BEEEBEHEDT
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the PIFIE - ZEHAEH M BRERA

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for
income and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the
determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

BERNBEAEATE:

HHE
EEMBHAREMHREARERS
REREAHE - X —REBKB
BH - ZEXGEAENRER
HERTEEEE - AR E R EH
BHEEBEASEENREERER
SRR A R AE o WA &
EFEEMNZRBABRERI L
BHNEeREEZR MAEEZES
ERENFLEENHEAMS
MR R E T TR B e

fili A 1 2 R R

BRARAKRHETEZMBAREAME
BRI EERENRESHRE
SMEMBRFEREEERAEREE
TREBANFERR ZKIRMT °
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses as at
31 December 2019 was amounted to HK$62.6 million (2018: HK$12.3
million). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2019
was approximately nil (2018: nil). Further details are contained in note
15 to the financial statements.

Impairment allowances on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

R ah A B R A o)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) i A 1 E B3R ()
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BERFEGFABZLHBEE R
]

The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using external valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques
used include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
discounted cash flows analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants.
Changes in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect
the reported fair values of these financial assets. Further details are
contained in notes 20 and 42 to the financial statements.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group's senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group's operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the
Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other operating segments.

WIEMNERMBEENZRAFE
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T H 2 EE T RSB H A
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NEA(E - #E— T FBFHR B R
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(a) the brokerage segment engages in the provision of securities,
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking as well as insurance brokerage services to customers;

(o) the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of
advisory services, placing and underwriting services of debt and
equity securities;

(c) the asset management segment engages in asset management,
including fund management and the provision of investment
advisory services;

(d) the loans and financing segment engages in the provision of
margin financing and securities borrowing and lending to margin
customers, initial public offering (“IPQ") loans, other loans to
customers and bank deposits;

(e)  the financial products, market making and investments segment
represents funds, fixed income securities and equity investments,
structuring of financial products as well as trading and market
making of debt securities, exchange traded funds ("ETF") and
derivatives; and

(f)  the "others" segment mainly represents rental income and the
provision of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the
prices charged to third parties.
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Operating segment information (continued)

The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Brokerage

HK$'000
TR

Corporate
finance

rERE
HK$'000
TR

Asset
management

BEEE
HK$'000
TR

oy TR E B w)

BT E-NER T —NF+=
A=+—BLt&E A£EHS

EERAMT:

BRE_F-LETZH=+

— H 14 &

Financial

products,

market

Loans and making and

financing investments
SHER -

EXRME HMWRRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT

Others

Hit
HK$'000
TER

Total

HK$'000
TER

Segment revenue and other 2B s R EAM

income: WA
Sales to external customers HETIHBER 531,233 809,047 36,439 1,134,972 1,733,845 4,635 4,250,171
Inter-segment sales Pz EEE - - - - - - -
Total st 531,233 809,047 36439  1,134972 1,733,845 4,635 4,250,171
Segment results DEEE 102,593 301,800 32,049  (378,879) 947,880 - 1,005,443
Income tax expense FEREX (102,884)
Profit for the year FRET 902,559
Other segment information: HivH HEHR
Net impairment charge on loans S FEFER KRB

and advances to customers W EF R - - - 908,530 - - 908,530
Net impairment charge/(reversal) BB R E

on accounts receivable it/ (BE)F 8 (3.280) 3,537 358 - 1,334 - 1,949
Net impairment charge/(reversal) ~ Eti&gEERME

on other financial assets Y/ (BR)FE (5,945) - - - 4,181 - (1,764)
Depreciation il 30,736 17,735 4,051 8,068 4,488 - 65,078
Finance costs MERAK 14,430 - - 272,836 592,028 - 879,294
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4.

Year ended 31 December 2018

198

Brokerage

HK$'000

[ g—
BJTT

Corporate
finance

HK$'000

o
BJTL

Asset
management

BEEE
HK$'000
THT

H ik 48 i

Loans and
financing

L&
HK$'000
T

Financial
products,
market
making and
investments

HK$'000

BT

QOthers

Hﬁf 0 u"-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET BT

Segment revenue and other DE i E R EAM

income: WA
Sales to external customers HETIHPER 454,962 594,970 16,716 1,307,294 651,948 3,932 3,029,822
Inter-segment sales AHEHEE - - - - - - -
Total Bt 454,962 594,970 16,716 1,307,294 651,948 3,932 3,029,822
Segment results DEEE 144173 304,822 (7,621) 578,322 (36,424) = 983,272
Income tax expense FRERAX (134,098)
Profit for the year FR&EF 849,174
Other segment information: Hip HEHR:
Net impairment charge on loans A FEFEH R #HK

and advances to customers BB - = = 265,870 = = 265,870
Net impairment chargef(reversal) YK B E

on accounts receivable T/ (ER)F8 (6,925) 1 196 - (14,855) - (21,583)
Net impairment charge/(reversal) ~ Hti & BEERE

on other financial assets S/ (BR)BE (4,196) 5 2 = (27) = (4,216)
Depreciation nE 8,698 10,066 2,008 11,905 3,864 - 36,541
Finance costs RE KA 8,862 - - 311,885 393,007 - 713,754
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information
(a)  Revenue and other income from external customers

oy TR E B w)

b 355 R
@) SrEFEF Yas R AEMIKA

2019 2018

—E-hEF —FT—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#& T TE T

Hong Kong BB 4,121,513 2,875,296
Other countries EMBExR 128,658 154,526
4,250,171 3,029,822

The information of revenue and other income above is based on
the locations of the markets.

(b)  Non-current assets
Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

Exemy s B E A A B B
T ™in R im B -

b) FrBHEE
AEBAMAOERBDEE
(TEREELEHIAEE) B
REE °
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Revenue

The Group's revenue is disaggregated as follows:

5.

W 5t

AREBNWSZAHWT

2019
—E-0F

HK$'000
FER

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TET

Revenue from contracts with customers EFE &K am
Brokerage: AR T
Securities E 5 452,531 366,654
Futures and options BiE & B 17,311 28,488
Handling income FHEEBEWRA 52,688 49,803
Insurance R Bex 6,592 7,658
Leveraged foreign exchange 1512 SN E 2,111 2,359
. 531233 454,962

Corporate finance: PERE
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting Bt & ~ & $5 & 7 & $5 0 &

commission

— Debt securities - BB ES 594,446 483,303

— Equity securities — AR FEFH 136,326 78,219
Consultancy and financial advisory fee B R p & AERA

income 78,275 33,448

e 809,047 594970
Asset management: BEERE:
Management fee income EEEIA 12,772 12,338
Performance fee income KRIWEBUW A 23,667 4378
36,439 16,716
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. Wezkom)
The Group's revenue is disaggregated as follows: (continued) AEBEHKREADWOT : (&)
2019 PIONES
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHB T
Financial products, market making and TREm MHEKRE:
investments:
Net income on structured financial EEESHERKRAFRE
products 418,447 641,667
418,447 641,667
Revenue from other sources H it 3R
Loans and financing: ERXREE :
Interest and handling income from EPREFHIHENTE R
customers and counterparty financing FEBRA 742,388 1,013,992
Interest income from banks and others SR 1T M EAth A B U A 392,584 293,302
1,134,972 1,307,294
Financial products, market making and TRIEM MHLKRE:
investments:
Trading gain/(loss) on fixed income BEWZZHZRGWZE
securities (E548)
— Listed securities — FTES 308,017 (346,444)
— Unlisted securities - FEEMESH 120,586 (16,415)
Interest income from fixed income & 7 I 55 7 5 8 AL B A
securities
— Listed securities - FHEFH 740,627 466,392
— Unlisted securities —FEMEFH 75,478 37,757
Trading loss on exchange traded funds RIGMRH5EEXHEE (359) (59)
Trading gain/(loss) on equity securities BABHR G W= (EE) 26,770 (145,859)
Trading loss on unconsolidated investment JEA IR EE ST FHE1E
funds (17,400) (73,695)
Net gain on foreign exchange HNEE R 25 F 5B 39,892 43,806
Net gain on financial instruments EERATFEFABZED
designated at fair value through profit eI A= FE
or loss 54,890 7,700
Interest income from unlisted financial BAFEGFABRNIELED
instruments at fair value through profit TR T AR EK A
or loss - 3,833
Dividend income i B A 24,529 19,583
Trading (gain)/loss attributable to MEKRBEESE=ZHER
third-party interests in consolidated NS (W), /B8
investment funds (57,632) 13,682
1,315,398 10,281
4,245,536 3,025,890
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6. Staff costs

6. BITHA

2019
—E-NF

HK$'000
TRERT

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
THT

Staff costs (including directors’ ETXRA(BEESEHE) :
remuneration):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances Ha - AL ROERL 769,174 559,929
Share-based compensation expense VAR £ 7% 5 7 #7 (E B =2
— Share option scheme (note 32) — BB A% T &I (B9 7E32) 6,798 5,297
— Share award scheme (note 33) — B fp 2B A& (M 5£33) 57,325 69,471
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIHK 9,615 8,156
842,912 642,853
7. Finance costs 7. BE A

2019
ZEB-hF

HK$'000
TRER

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FTAET

Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITERREX 324,624 301,771
Debt securities in issue BRTEEES 240,618 202,479
Securities borrowing and lending BEEBE 7,272 2,330
Repurchase agreements 5] B 173 = 199,013 111,173
Financial instruments at fair value through R QA FEFAEBZHN SR
profit or loss TA
— Fixed income securities held for trading - BEEEMNEEKE
& % 82,546 82,204
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,862 =
Others H 23,359 13,797
879,294 713,754
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8.

The Group's profit before tax is

Profit before tax

Auditor's remuneration
(i) audit services
(ii) interim review
(iii) tax and other consultancy services

Foreign exchange differences, net

Other commission expenses

Information services expenses

Marketing, advertising and promotion
expenses

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases

Professional and consultancy fee

Repair and maintenance (including system
maintenance)

Net impairment charge on loans and
advances to customers

Net impairment charge/(reversal) on
accounts receivable

Net reversal of impairment charge on other
financial assets and loan commitments

arrived at after charging/(crediting):

EHEEN 2

() = BR%

(i) =G

(i) 7% 75 Ko E 7% 70 AR 75
SNIEF R
H A8 2 5 X
&R X
MSEHEE BEREEXH

B

FEHENRERS

EXREAE
SR EE(RER S HE)

I

n‘%r“#

E|>

TFTEFER K
S'ZH]'@&%E
& W SR TR R E 2 (B 1)

F R
HtheMEEKER
BB 37 B Bl F R

R /ﬁi Tﬁ

R R E

3% A Wi ¥z A

7 5% 3 & B Bt A g I T S OB

GFARTHERGH

2019
—E-h#E

HK$'000
TR

3,438
980
3,460
53,758
53,072
35,439

11,823

93,013
59,980
908,530
1,949

(1.764)

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
TAET

2,613
760
1,759
312
57,445
28,820
6,058

12,227
63,508

45,740
265,870
(21,583)

(4,216)
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—E-hF+=ZA=+—H

9. Income tax expense 0.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during

Fir 5 Bt BA 2

FEENSRIRFRAERREL
B fil 5T & R % gt ) #%2 3% % 16.5%

the vear. —ZT—)\F :16.50) TR BE o
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHETT

Current — Hong Kong e — BB
— Charge for the year - FAREZ 233,040 219,045
— Under provision in prior years -BEFERETR 4,924 15,763
Deferred (note 15) i FE (Bt 5E15) (135,080) (100,710)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBERS BE 102,884 134,098

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using
the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as
follows:

1238 R TE B R 2 B B A A E
BZHAERARERMEAE
ZBBERHERWT

2019 2018
—E-hE

HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T T T
Profit before tax B B4 BT a2 1,005,443 983,272

Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% R ER E16.5%t & 2 Fi1H
(2018: 16.5%) (ZZF— % : 16.5%) 165,898 162,240
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 4,924 15,763
Income not subject to tax BEFR WA (69,905) (68,946)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 5,425 32,107
Tax losses utilised EHAMRIEEE (3.417) (7,058)
Temporary difference not recognised RERE B =58 (41) (8)
Tax charge for the year FRBERT 102,884 134,098
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—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

10. Dividends 10.

2019 2018
—g-nE —TNE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Interim, paid — HK$0.042 (2018: HK$0.033) i Hi - EXXff — B
per ordinary share B AR 0.04278 7T

—Z— N\ :0.033%87T) 324,058 254,617
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B AR D REBETEITET
Company's share award scheme BT 5 B% 19 &9 A% B, (2,747) (2,939)
e 321,311 251,678
Final, proposed — HK$0.02 (2018: HK$0.02) K& - ¥tk % — &%
per ordinary share i R 0.0278 7T
ZZE—N\F:002%7T) 192,698 154,313
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B ANRE R R ENETEIIAE T
Company's share award scheme BT 5 B% 19 B9 A% B (738) (1,268)
e 191960 153,045
513,271 404,723

* The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$152,995,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018, as further adjusted to include the dividend
for shares held under the share award scheme amounting to HK$50,000.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

* ARRIERBEHBE-_T—N\E+
—A=t-BLEFEZREOKRE
#9152,995,0007% 7T : £ B E
ABAGTARG B EIE T
£ B’ 1n 2 B B &50,000% 7T ©

FARKRHREALRARF K

RREERRBERNS LHLE -
HEHEE -
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—E-hF+=ZA=+—H

11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

11. B2 W] 3% 48 B B o e A 4
i B A

502 AR B AR TS 2R LA T
K E

0

(a) M AZE A
EREARRMNNEGER AR
T

Profit attributable to ordinary equity ISNCIE= SN g
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) i A (LA 7% 7T Et) 895,303 796,835
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E R R i 15
shares in issue less shares held for the OB st R 1D BB AT &
share award scheme (in '000) BAEMHRMD (CATFED 7,653,126 7,581,163
Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) FRRE R B A
(LA ALET) 11.7 10.5

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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31 December 2019
—E-NAF+R=+—H

I1.

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity 11.
holders of the parent (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

& RF BB RREMN

B W) 3 48 JE B R A
I BA) )

(b) 45 e 3 2 A ()
BREERMOAE AN
T

holders of the parent (in HK$'000) six A (LAF 7B T Et) 895,303 796,835
Weighted average number of ordinary AREFESRERERN
shares in issue less shares held for the BB 17 I B A% A b
share award scheme used in the basic 15 OB BE IR 1D R B
earnings per share calculation (in '000) ArEIF ARG
(LATF5T) 7,653,126 7,581,163
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEyE - TERY
number of ordinary shares: I HE S5 &
Share options under the share option BB IR ST S TE T BY
scheme (in '000) BB Ax #E (AT 1) 4,330 13,231
Awarded shares under the share award i% (7 BB ET 21 IE T A
scheme (in '000) RN AR D (AT &) 14,272 12,072
Number of ordinary shares for the REREERZFGFEMS
purpose of the diluted earnings per BB R BB AT 5T
share calculation (in '000) 7,671,728 7,606,466
Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) & % # & & 7
(AL ET) 11.7 10.5
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12. Property, plant and equipment 12. W3 ~ W Mokt

Owned assets Right of use assets

208

Furniture
Office and
fixtures

equipment

BOERE BARKE

HK$'000
TiEn

HK$'000
TiEn

RREE

Leasehold

Buildings  improvements
B RENEZE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR

Motor
vehicles
#E
HK§'000
THEL

Sub-total
it
HK§'000
THEL

Leasehold
land
HELH
HK$'000
TER

EREEE

Buildings
£
HK$'000
TR

Sub-total
it
HK§'000
THEL

[]¢]
@t
HK§'000
THEL

31 December 2019 “Z-NE

+-A=+-8
As at 1 January 2019 WZE-N¥-F-R
Cost A 100,143 6736 563,831 43,186 2,993 716,889 - - - 716,889
Accumulated depreciation RiHE (73.992)  (4,589) (131,021) (32,650)  (2.993) (245,245) - - - (245,245)
Net carrying amount FHFE 26,151 2147 432,810 10,536 - 471644 - - - 471644
Opening net carrying amount —~ FAIEEFE 26,151 2147 432,810 10,536 - 471644 - - - 471644
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 SRAVE 8 B 5 4R 5 228

Fl6R T2 - - (370,150) - - (370150) 370150 53060 423210 53,060
Opening net carrying amount ~ EFREFE 26,151 2141 62,660 10,536 - 101494 370150 53060 423210 524,704
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-RMEAR 1318 - - - 75 1393 - 2,781 2,781 4174
Additions FE 25,362 61 - 2,652 - 28075 - 17078 17078 45153
Exchange realignment SNEFR 2 - - (28) 1 (25) - 1 1 (14)
Depreciation charged during ERHE

the year (18642)  (1,147)  (2199) (6,144) (@) (28136) (12988) (23954) (36942)  (65,078)

Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 34,191 1061 60,461 7016 72 102,801 357162 48,976 406,138 508,939
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-N%E

+-A=1-H
Cost A 126,819 6,797 81999 45,848 3069 264,532 481,832 72919 554751 819,283
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (92628)  (5736)  (21,538) (38.832)  (2997) (161,731) (124,670) (23.943) (148,613) (310,344)
Net carrying amount EHEE 34191 1061 60,461 7016 72102801 357,162 48976 406,138 508,939
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31 December 2019
—E-NAF+R=+—H

12. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 12. W3 ~ B S i o)
Office  Furniture and Land and Leasehold Motor
fixtures buildings  improvements vehicles
X BRREE LTHREF HEWMEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET AT FET BT FHT
31 December 2018 ZZ-)\F
+-A=t-H
As at 1 January 2018 R=F—\E—H—H
Cost A 85,266 5111 563,831 35,357 2,993 692,558
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (62,524) (3,688) (115,834) (27,708) (2,798) (212,552)
Net carrying amount EEFE 22,742 1,423 447997 7,649 195 480,006
Opening net carrying amount FOREFE 2,78 1423 447997 7,649 195 480,006
Additions NE 18,289 1,634 - 8,263 - 28,186
Exchange realignment SNEFE 9) - - 2 = 7)
Depreciation charged during FRHE
the year (14.871) (910) (15,187) (5,378) (195) (36,541)
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 26,151 2,147 432,810 10,536 = 471,644
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\&
T=A=+-A
Cost KA 100,143 6,736 563,831 43186 2,993 716,889
Accumulated depreciation 2RIt & (73,992) (4589) (131,021) (32,650) (2,993) (245,245)
Net carrying amount ERFE 26,151 2147 432,810 10,536 - 471,644
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13. Goodwill and other intangible assets

13, 7o N A S A

Trading Club
rights  membership Goodwill Total
X5  sReR B e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Net carrying amounts REFE
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F
—H—H 1,913 910 — 2,823
Additions NE - 372 - 372
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF
+=ZA=+—8H 1,913 1,282 - 3,195
Trading Club
rights membership Goodwill Total
R B (GRS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THEx THEx THEx
Net carrying amounts BRTE B
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—h&F
—H—H 1,913 1,282 - 3,195
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B AR
(note 44) (Kt 5£44) - - 20,473 20,473
Disposals L& - (1,282) - (1,282)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+-—A=+—A” 1,913 - 20,473 22,386

R-ZE-—NFRER-_Z—)N\F+_-A
=t+—B ASEHAERBEIA
W=BEXZEREEHAERFFH
ERAARIN—ERZ#E - AR
EIHA HEE-_T—NLEFR
—E-N\FF+_A=t—HLFE
WEEBHELEE -

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had three trading rights
in the Stock Exchange and one trading right in The Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as they have no expiry date.
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—=_
—=

13.

14.

NFE+ZA=+—H

Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued) 13.

Impairment testing of goodwill

As detailed in note 44 to the financial statements in relation to the
acquisition of IVS (as defined in note 44 to the financial statements),
goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
IVS cash-generating unit for impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the IVS cash-generating unit has been determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal using a quoted price as at 31 December

2019.

Other assets

14.

7 % ot 4 T K A )

7 2 A B

AR SRR M 44 PTRE (RR
BRAWBIVS (& R M5 | KK
iH44) BREXBGAHEBSHNR
BAORKRIVSREELEEMARE
BRI - IVSIREELBEMA R
BeBHRBER-_ZT-—NF+=
A=t BN HERENATFE
B AR o

o Ath %

2019
— L

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHE T

HK$'000
TER

Basic contribution of the guarantee fund X FEBFREEFR

paid to Hong Kong Securities Clearing RE((BEBEE]DWIRE

Company Limited ("HKSCC") AEEERER 690 690
Deposits with Stock Exchange: REERFHIESE

— Compensation fund - HEES 150 150

— Fidelity fund - BERES 150 150

— Stamp duty deposit - ENERIE® 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC SINTEBEENEANE 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options REBBERIMBEEE

Clearing House Limited ERAFIMNGEES 1,927 1,541
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai X FEBEHFX MK

Stock Exchange HERRBES 223 227
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation REBREEEARQAN

Limited o 1,500 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and REFRBEERE R

Futures Commission ZEENES 50 50
License deposit with the Monetary REFIMEEREEBT

Authority of Singapore e R iR & 578 573
Statutory deposit with Hanoi Stock RN E 5 R 5 T BEE

Exchange 7 2,402 =
Interest receivables of bank deposits R 17 17 3K P WA 2 52 =
Other prepayments H b T8 1< /I8 154 =

8,526 5,631

The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their

fair values.

AEEHEMEENREEREERD
FEMESE -
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15. Deferred tax 15. B|EEBLIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year FAERCHBAEREEZ SN
are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities A %t 5 JH £ 5

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Fair value gain Total
ERBETE A F E Uk 2 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FB T FB T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H (9,463) (35,259) (44,722)
Deferred tax credited to profit ~ F 15 5H A IE & F 18
or loss 3,911 35,259 39,170
At 31 December 2018 and at RZZE—N\F
1 January 2019 +—A=+t—H8k
—E-NAF—H—H (5,552) - (5.552)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) R iBzEst A (F0ER)
to profit or loss i E T IR 1,873 (45,352) (43,479)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H (3,679) (45,352) (49,031)
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—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

15. Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Losses
available for
offsetting
against future

15. |IEFLIE (2)

taxable Fair value Share-based ECL
profits loss compensation allowance
7] 4 3 86
RRBIE DN Erig=] AEERA
mANERE ATLEFE EBRHEHH BARE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAEL TAET TAT
At 1 January 2018 R-FE—-\F—A—H 12,302 - 3,854 57,663 73,819
Deferred tax credited/ REZEFA/(HK)
(charged) to profit or loss EIER A (49) 21,151 826 39,612 61,540
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F
at 1 January 2019 +-—A=+—-Hk
“Z-NE—-HA—H 12,253 21,151 4,680 97,275 135,359
Deferred tax credited| RIEZEA/(F08)
(charged) to profit or loss EIET B 50,378 (21,151) (460) 149,792 178,559
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=1+—H 62,631 - 4,220 247,067 313,918

EEEERNANBARARIEER
EEAHEAGETEIELMR
BRERRA—HBHEEE - Al
HELEMEHEELRZABEEHREE
HeBREMBREERBE/N
—FRTUBRAEEE - T 5
EtAEERHEREEN SR
EHEAMBMRRARAIIK -

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
taxation authority. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
to be utilised and settled after one year and the following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2019
—E-hEF

2018
—F—N\F
HK$'000
FBT

HK$'000
THER

Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 267,316 129,807
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAR (2,429) =
264,887 129,807
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15. | FLIE )

A S B JE K E ()
RZZE-NAFE+=ZA=+—8"
AEBKRBEE BN IEEIEARE
HR376EBET(ZT—/\F:
742BEEBT) EERFERBHANA
ARARNBHEEBBRIFRNARRK
JE R g A

15. Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group had total tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$379.6 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$74.2 million), that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose.

RZB-AE+-_A=+—08 " ¥%
BEAREBEEBRRNECREELE
ZE-N\FE) o ZEEETIA
EBEEE—BREMNEE QR E
£ BR AT AR ERB G A
WEZEREERE -

As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax assets which have not been
recognised in respect of losses (2018: nil). These losses have arisen in
group companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

16. Loans and advances to customers 16. 8 TE P WS K3k

2019
“E-hF

HK$'000
FRET

2018
—ZT—N\F
HK$'000
FB T

Non-current IEM B
Term loans to customers BTERFPFHNEHER 948,000 2,340,000
Less: Impairment B ORE (479) (1,170)
947,521 2,338,830
Current Vi)
Margin loans FRE®X 11,719,143 9,430,753
Term loans to customers HBTITEFPHNEHER 532,480 1,079,788
Less: Impairment R E (1,483,242) (573,996)
e 10,768,381 | 9,936,545
11,715,902 12,275,375

RZE—NE+=ZA=+—8"
HFREREGHEREATESENE
HE(ZZ—N\F : 253,000 7T)
HBEHR YIS RRME7 -

As at 31 December 2019, balances of margin loans included loans
to directors of nil (2018: HK$253,000) as detailed in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. # T& P & K& B
(&)

Loans and advances are categorised into “excellent”, “good", "fair" EXEBERSBERIES] R
and “individually impaired”. “Excellent” refers to exposures which gl TERIRMERRE] [EF]
margin obligation can be met and payment of interest and principal EABRTHEEARLASTNF A
is not in doubt, with good quality and liquidity of collaterals. "Good" AIEF - BHEFERE &R B
refers to exposures which principal and interest are fully secured at a MRFRER - [RIFIERE M
relatively low level and quality of the collateral is satisfactory. "Fair" FERBEFEEBAREES
refers to exposures which principal and interest are partially secured wE R BE KR o [EiEE
at a moderate level and quality of the collateral is deteriorating. e MAEMHHEEMEER R
“Individually impaired” refers to exposures which loss, partial or full, EEFEREOWFREKRERR -
has incurred and with insufficient collateral. ME R R EIREEE D KEHK

BEAERABEARORAR -

Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the BRAEEANBEETRRERS

Group's internal credit rating and year end classification: EORT_A=+—HAEREA
B

2019 —2—JuE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
AEERE EBEERE

EAEHE HNEHESE HE2HES

EHABRX EHABRX EHABRX
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(1B ER) (SB2f &7) (B3R ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Internal rating grade A B T AR THER THER THER THER
Performing E®

Excellent BH 10,413,958 - - 10,413,958
Good R 4T - - - -
Fair g 715,272 - - 715,272
Non-performing TR

Individually impaired 18 Bl B A - - 2,070,393 2,070,393

11,129,230 = 2,070,393 13,199,623
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 TR P &3k & 8%
(#&)
2018 )\ 4HF

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
AEERE EREERE

REAEE ®H2HEH H2HEH

EREBX EREBX EREBX

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F1REER) (F20EE8) (F3RBER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade X & AT AR TAET TAET TAET TAET
Performing E®
Excellent B 10,124,715 — — 10,124,715
Good R #f 542,593 - - 542,593
Fair Tl 1,028,530 - - 1,028,530
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired (ERINERIE - - 1,154,703 1,154,703

11,695,838 = 1,154,703 12,850,541
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16. # T % P HY 8k & 2ok
(#)

16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

FRE 4B E AR TR 15 18 R B

Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL

allowance is as follows:

12-month
ECL

1218 A 18 4

EREBEX
(Stage 1)
(1P ER)
HK$'000
FAT

BofmmTE:

Lifetime ECL
not credit-
impaired
AMEERE
# 2 5 78 57
ERBEX
(Stage 2)
(20 &)
HK$'000
TAET

Lifetime

ECL credit-
impaired
EEERE
#) 2 5 78 58
ERBEX
(Stage 3)
(F3RER)
HK$'000
TAET

st

HK$'000
TAT

Gross carrying amount as at RZE-N\F
1 January 2018 —A—Bf
FERE 15,049,005 - 939,421 15,988,426
New assets originated or BEELASEBEN
purchased MAE 3,225,675 = 32,154 3,257,829
Assets derecognised or repaid B IETE R K
BEEENEE (6,009,841) - (290,316) (6,300,157)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HE—HREAZR
E=ER (569,001) - 569,001 —~
Amount written off during FAMHESE
the year = = (95,557) (95,557)
Gross carrying amount as at RZE—N\EF
31 December 2018 and +tZA=+—HK
as at 1 January 2019 N-ZZE-AFE
—A—Bf
RE2E 11,695,838 - 1,154,703 12,850,541
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy & — FEI Bt /&8 2 ) 49,379 - - 49,379
New assets originated or BEELASEEER
purchased MAE 5,080,313 - 22,195 5,102,508
Assets derecognised or repaid BRI TR K
BEENEE (4,728,502) - (74,303)  (4,802,805)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HE—HBBREAZE
F=ER (967,798) - 967,798 -
Gross carrying amount as at RZE-NF
31 December 2019 +=ZA=+—8#
FERE 11,129,230 - 2,070,393 13,199,623
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 TR P W8 K 8%
(%)
The movements in the ECL allowance on loans and advances to HTEFHMERKBRIEHEH
customers are as follows: TE%E’]%ﬁ Fa) T

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
AEERE BEERE

NEATEE HE2HEH N2 HES

EREX EREX EREX

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F1BER) (20 ER) (F3RBER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
ECL allowance as at RZE—N\5F
1 January 2018 —A—BMEH
EREAEE (7,685) - (397,168) (404,853)
New assets originated or EELEHEBEN
purchased MEE (272) = = (272)
Assets derecognised or repaid BRIEHERS
BEEEMNEE 2,539 - - 2,539
Changes to risk parameters R R EHEE) (8,062) = (199,280) (207,342)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HEIBEREA R
FIRER 164 - (164) -
Changes arising from transfer of  J& i & % [& B /)
stage =) - - (60,795) (60,795)
Amount written off during FAME S HE
the year - - 95,557 95,557
ECL allowance as at 31 December RZ=Z—/\4F
2018 and 1 January 2019 +TZA=+—HK
—E-hF
—A—BHEH
EREXER (13.316) - (561,850) (575.,166)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — KB DA (25) - - (25)
New assets originated or EEEHEBERN
purchased & E (159) — — (159)
Assets derecognised or repaid BRI TR K
EEEMEE 437 - - 437
Changes to risk parameters [ B 2 8 1,598 - (308,543) (306,945)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HEIREREA R
FIRBR 4,272 - (4,272) -
Changes arising from transfer of  J& 7 & % [ X /9
stage 23 - - (601,863) (601,863)
ECL allowance as at RZE-nF
31 December 2019 +T=ZA=1+—H#1
EHEREX
B & (7,193) - (1,476,528) (1,483,721)
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16.

—NEF+=ZA=+—H~H

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances to
customers have been written off but were still subject to enforcement
activity was nil at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$95,557,000).

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers' securities held as
collateral. The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is
based on the customer's financial background and the quality of
related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit and risk management
department to monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged
securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate and are repayable on demand. The carrying value of
margin loans approximates to their fair value. No ageing analysis is
disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing analysis does
not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans
business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is
determined by the discounted market value of the collateral securities
accepted by the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the total value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the margin loans was
approximately HK$33,519 million (2018: HK$25,580 million) based on
the market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the
interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant
customers and the quality and value of the collateral pledged. The
term loans granted to customers amounted to HK$1,444,038,000
(2018: HK$3,380,146,000), and the accrued interest amounted to
HK$36,442,000 (2018: HK$39,642,000) as at 31 December 2019. The
carrying amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their
fair values.

16.

M TR PR R BOK
(#)

R-ZB-hF+-_HA=+—8H"
E M SH B 1) 78 £ 17 9% B BOK 1T

BB TEEFNERRB RN K
EBEEAHNSEAT(CT—NEF:
95,557,000 7T) °
e s %
AREEREFLGRRFLIRMT

ERE UEFHE %%HT’E%EE?@
miER - BREFERNKSE
ERETNUNEPNBMBEE R MM
HRARAEARNERREE - $
SEB RIS HERFBERER
E’JFWT H o WKZTEER
EEFMEEEERR -

BKTEFHNAEREFRNAEBEEIR
HEEHER REBEBTLEZRAN
KRB WKREBERKEEZ - FRE
HNOEAEEEAFERE - A
REERE ERNARERED
RMEE - BRER DT T & he &8
SMEE - BERERE DT -
BRTAREFHNEEBREREIR
BEAEBEEZEMNBERBHMRT
BETE HR_E—NF+=-A=+
—HB fEAEAFEREREARHE
BHESFEELRILSI9BEET

—\%E : 25,5808 & 7T) °
W IEEFRREBHRO M ER
BISH -

BTEPNEEXR
AEBIRAEFRETHER -
RETFEE  S2ZHBEP
B B 75 (2 B A O A K2 BT 3 Y 3
FREEZREE R-_ZE—LF
+—H:+—E?%§ﬁmiﬂ
B % A #01,444,038,00058 7T (=

— J\ % : 3,380,146,0005% JT) - E
JE 5t F B & £136,442,000/8 7T (:
T —)\4F : 39,642,000/ 7T) ° %
Eﬁmm%% X Y BR (8
FEHRE

D/ %N
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17. Loans to directors 17. ZH#TEFNEXK
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong RIEE B Rl 5515 383(1)(d) & &
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure RA(RBEZENZERDROIE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows: 3FMMTE  AEBEGLTEEFNEN
HEWT
Maximum
Maximum At amount
At amount 31 December outstanding
31 December outstanding 2018 and during the At
2019 during the year 1 January 2019 prior year 1 January 2018 Collateral held
RZB-N\F
+=ZA=t-H
RZZB-h#F FARE R=ZB-n#F AFERER RZIZ-N\F
+=A=+-H KAEELE -B—-H AEEBSE -B—-H BFEERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR FHT
Mr. LI Guangjie - 5,529 - 4,982 —  Marketable securities
Mr. WONG Tung Ching - 993 253 253 - Marketable securities
FLERE BEREF
The loans granted to directors bear interest range from Hong Kong BRTESEHNERDRBETIRER
dollar prime rate +/-3% per annum depending on risk assessment on MENREFE%TE - BTH
collateral received and the facilities were granted to the directors for ERERmBE BT ETE - &
a period of 3 years ending on 31 December 2020. RTESCERLH  BHE=F
BHE_T_TFT+-_A=+—H
I o
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18.

Accounts receivable

business of the Group are as follows:

18.

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of

AEBEXGBETRAELENEY

FEHREENT

2019
—E-h#E

HK$'000
TR

2018

—E-N\EF

HK$'000
TAET

Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 4% 42 3 %5 JiE W 3k 1B
- cash and custodian clients - BekTAERF 40,374 33,503
- the Stock Exchange and other — BT R B A 45 B AT
clearing houses 1,366,064 1,310,012
- brokers and dealers - BERR5HE 2,371,854 3,723,323
Accounts receivable arising from insurance 1R B 4€ 42 AR 75 & W X IA
brokerage services
- cash and custodian clients -BekATERFP 114 23
Accounts receivable arising from securities & % & & 2 75 & I 1B
borrowing and lending
- brokers and dealers - BEERS5HE 72,889 129,116
Accounts receivable arising from THERE BEEETRE-
corporate finance, asset management, TREM MHERKRE
financial products, market making and EY Y &
investments
- corporate clients, investment funds - hERP -KREES
and others N H A 307,300 156,871
4,158,595 5,352,848
Less: Impairment R E (7,574) (5,625)
4,151,021 5,347,223
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. W& W3k H ()
The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts receivable FEWFIBREREESHNT

are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hHF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHETT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 5,625 44137

Impairment charged to profit or loss during 4 R &T A 18 & &9 5L B

the year 5,579 467
Impairment reversed during the year A B O /9 R E (3.630) (22,050)
Amounts written off Hif 85 & 58 - (16,950)
Exchange difference bE 5, = 5 = 21
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 7,574 5,625

The contractual amount outstanding on accounts receivable have been RZZE-AF+=—A=+—H B
written off but were still subject to enforcement activity was nil at 31 MEEEDAEITR B IEITEA
December 2019 (2018: HK$16,950,000). RKRRBEREEENERAT(Z

Z — )\ : 16,950,000/ 7T) °
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The detail analysis of accounts receivable arising from the course of
business of the Group are as follows:

31 December 2019

Accounts

receivable

Accounts  from the
receivable Stock
from  Exchange

18. FEWL #JE ()

AEBXBBEPHELNEK
RIBRFHADTOT

—E—AEFZASt—H

Accounts
receivable
from
corporate  Accounts

Accounts clients, receivable

cash and  and other  receivable investment from
custodian clearing from brokers  funds and  insurance

clients houses and dealers others  brokerage

RERk BRAR
AERF Htt&HEHA
ERHXE REBURE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEEFR -

BERk rREEE: RBREL

Ram R R
EWHRE EBUKE EUIRE act
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET TER TER TER TET TET

Gross carrying amount AREE 40,374 1,366,064 2,444,743 307,300 114 4,158,595
Less: Impairment R E

— Stage 1 - BIEE (20) (668) (2126) N/ATE A - (2,814)

— Stage 2 - FIRR - - - NATEH - -

- Stage 3 - B3R (183) - - NATEH - (183)

— Simplified approach - 5% NATER NATER NATER 4,577) N/ARER (4,577)

40,171 1,365,396 2,442,617 302,723 114 4,151,021
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

31 December 2018

18.

JRE Wt 3Kk JE (47)
=% /et A=+ —H

Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts from the from
receivable Stock corporate Accounts
from Exchange Accounts clients, receivable
cash and  and other  receivable  investment from
custodian clearing from brokers  funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others  brokerage
rEEP -
Bek BRAk ) REES RBRER
AERF HttEEMR 5 REA 7%
FEUHE ERFE ERFE ERFE  RUEFE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT THBT THETL TAETL TET
Gross carrying amount BEEE 33,503 1,310,012 3,852,439 156,871 23 5,352,848
Less: Impairment R E
— Stage 1 - B (11) (642) (762) NATER - (1,415)
— Stage 2 - B (3,109) - - NATER - (3,109)
— Stage 3 - BB (133) - - NATER - (133)
— Simplified approach - &3% NATER NATER NATER (968) N/AT i FB (968)
30,250 1,309,370 3,851,677 155,903 23 5,347,223

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients represent
unsettled client trades on various securities exchanges transacted on
the last two to three business days prior to the end of the reporting
year. When the cash and custodian clients fail to settle on the
settlement date, the Group has the rights to force-sell the collateral
underlying the securities transactions. The collateral held against
these receivables is publicly traded securities. The impairment is made
after taking into consideration the recoverability from the collateral.
No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of these accounts receivable.
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JRE WL 3k JE ()

BERAERPHWERREAE &
BREENMEETEREHAEREE
DT

18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL
allowance of accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are
as follows:

Lifetime ECL

12-month not credit-
ECL impaired
AMEERE
# 2 5 78 57
ERBEX
(Stage 2)
(20 &)
HK$'000
TAET

Lifetime

ECL credit-
impaired
EEERE
#) 2 5 78 58
ERBEX BEr
(Stage 3)
(F3RER)
HK$'000
TAET

1218 A&y FE

EREBEX
(Stage 1)
(1P ER)
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
TAT

Gross carrying amount as at RZE-N\F
1 January 2018 —A—Bf
R mEE 155,884 17,670 13,852 187,406
New assets originated, purchased B ES - EEEH
or assets transferred MEENCHEE
W& E 21,809 2,575 27 24,411
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEERRK
BEEENEE (155,884) (8,731) (4) (164,619)
Amount written off during FAMHESHE
the year = = (13,695) (13,695)
Gross carrying amount as at RZE—N\F
31 December 2018 and as at TZA=T—HEK
1 January 2019 RZE—NF
—A—H/
BHREE 21,809 11,514 180 BSI508
New assets originated, purchased B ES - EEEH
or assets transferred MEEXCE &
W& E 40,153 - 44 40,197
Assets derecognised or repaid BRIETER
DEENEE (21,809) (11,514) ©) (33,326)
Gross carrying amount as at RZFE—NEF
31 December 2019 +=A=1+—Hf
BERHE(E 40,153 - 221 40,374
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18. MEWL 3K JE (&)

BehdEEFNEKKEANTE

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The movements in the ECL allowance of accounts receivable of cash

and custodian clients on are as follows:

12-month
ECL

1218 A & 78 58
ERB %
(Stage 1)
(1B ER)

HK$'000
FAL

HERBREDHHINWT

Lifetime ECL
not credit-
impaired
REERE
W2 Es
ERB %
(Stage 2)
(E2M &)
HK$'000
TAT

Lifetime
ECL credit-
impaired
EEERE
2| s
EREBEX
(Stage 3)
(SB3pEER)
HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
TAT

ECL allowance as at RZE—N\5F
1 January 2018 —A— B EH
EREXES (78) (4,771) (13,785) (18,634)
New assets originated or EEAREBER
purchased HEE (1) = = (1)
Assets derecognised or repaid B IEH#R K
BEEENEE 76 2,357 4 2,437
Changes to risk parameters [ Bz 2 81 & &) = (226) (42) (268)
Transfer of stages BB 2 (1) (1) =
Changes arising from transfer R 8 7% [ BR 1Y
of stage HE) - (468) 4) (472)
Amount written off during FAMESHE
the year - - 13,695 13,695
ECL allowance as at 31 December R —/\F
2018 and 1 January 2019 +tZA=+—-HK
—ZE-NF
—FB—BH
BEHEREX
B (11) (3,109) (133) (3,253)
New assets originated or BEELEHEBEN
purchased EE (20) — — (20)
Assets derecognised or repaid BRI TR K
BEEENEE 12 2,979 3 2,994
Changes to risk parameters ER28E% — — (34) (34)
Transfer of stages BRI (129) 130 (M =
Changes arising from transfer TR 75 B R Y
of stage # 128 - (18) 110
ECL allowance as at RZT—NF
31 December 2019 +TZA=+—HH
BHEREX
B & (20) = (183) (203)
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18.

Accounts receivable (continued)

For accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing
houses, brokers and dealers, and insurance brokerage, no ageing
analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these
accounts receivable. None of the transfer of impairment to different
stages were made during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds are
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment holding
and market making which have not yet been settled by clients after
the Group's normal credit period. The credit rating and reputation of
the trade counterparties were considered as sound for the past due
accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds.

The ageing analysis of relevant accounts receivable from corporate
clients and investment funds at the date of consolidated statement
of financial position based on invoice date and before impairment
allowance is as follows:

18.

JRE WL 3k JE ()

HRBMXAREMEER &
2 B 32 5 7 DA Re AR B 4 42 O B WK
KB BEERR HRZFRW
RENMEE  RE&EDITTE WK
BIMEE  MARBBELCAKED
fr-RBEZT-NAFR-_F—
NFTZA=+—BILFE  H#E
RREEBEBETEREE -

EPRASE-—REEHRHARK
AENEERPREREESNE
WRE(ELEBEEERE  bER
B REEBREMT) HREE
EFREEESHE A R UK
B RHEHFITNEEFERE
BREARBE -

REETBRARKBEHRIEER
BEEkRBERBERNEREER
K # B E & # HE BE IR MR TR RO BR
BN :

2019
ZE-NF

2018
—E-N\fF
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FRERT

Not yet past due A 7 %80 2 283,522 106,854
Past due less than 1 month BE—EAR 3,968 48,451
Past due between 1 to 3 months BE—Z==MEA 12,024 =
Past due over 3 months wEF =& A M £ 7.786 1,566
Total HBEt 307,300 156,871
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment holding
and market making using a provision matrix under simplified approach.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region, service type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters
of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, accounts receivables are written off if past due
for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds using a provision matrix:

2019

Gross carrying

JRE Wt 3Kk JE (47)

BEZLAERBEEREEFEND
XEFPRREESNRWIE(E
TEEEEE OHXRE KRE
2R ) o BIBERTGERGE
MR B R (B 7R R 5 R
BEYE ZEPBRHIRFHR UK
EREBEEREXEMEANGE
ERR) <EEEFDBETHA
B REETE - R ERBRY
RNMEER cEZHREBEEN
ERBEEMH BRI RER
A MR TR 2 ] E B H A
BHAERIKFEEN - —&M
5oOHMBEKRFERRS —FI L
81 0 35 FE U 5K 1B - I B A58
MITAEBMMAR -

UTRERABREREAENER
AEBCXREPRREESTHE
WHREZEERBRER:

=

amount ECL allowance Total
FERER

HEREE BABE ot

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T & T T % T

Not yet pass due &) A< 780 B 283,522 (42) 283,480
Past due less than 1 month & H — & A LA A 3,968 (24) 3,944
Past due between 1 to 3 months #HI —Z =1{& A 12,024 (2,409) 9,615
Past due over 3 months wmEA =& A E 7,786 (2.102) 5,684
Total AT 307,300 (4,577) 302,723
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. FEWL #JE ()

2018 )\

Gross carrying

amount  ECL allowance Total
TE HA {5 A

RERME (A 8BRS 5T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT F& T FA T

Not yet pass due #) 7K %80 2 106,854 (58) 106,796

Past due less than 1 month B — & A AR 48,451 (487) 47,964

Past due between 1 to 3 months I —Z% =& 5 - - =

Past due over 3 months wmHE =@ AN E 1,566 (423) 1,143

Total HEt 156,871 (968) 155,903
19. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19. BN SKIE ~ 3% 48 S il FE

WK ]

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAE T

Prepayments and deposits ENKIERIES 237,964 232,914

Interest receivables & U F B 31,835 89,507

269,799 322,421
None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The FREESEBBITY EEER
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables B o BT A Ll 45 82 7 78 JE W GRUIR
for which there was no recent history of default. SR EEDBAY EENLE -
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20. FA PR 25 Y 5 il

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Non-current
Financial assets held for trading
and investments

FERE
RIEEBERKRENEREE

¥

2019
ZE-hF

HK$'000
FERT

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FB T

— Unlisted fixed income securities - FLEMEER=EE 5 1,594,507 =
Financial assets at fair value through profit Z A FEAEBZHN &R
or loss BE
— Financial products (note (b)) — & @&t 2 m (M55 (b)) 6,267,785 4,333,237
7,862,292 4,333,237
Current it 2
Financial assets held for trading BIEEBEREERN
and investments TRl EE
— Listed equity securities - FRAE S 710,798 521,238
— Listed fixed income securities — T EE W E S 14,065,739 13,319,376
— Unlisted fixed income securities —EEMETRZEE S 2,493,982 473,057
Financial assets at fair value through profit % A F({EFABZEHN SR
or loss BE
— Listed fund investments - FmEEKE 2,783 2,753
— Unlisted fund investments (note (a)) —FLETESKE
(B ¥ (a) 1,758,316 447,903
— Unlisted convertible promissory note — JE LT AT AR A K R IR 4,298 23,847
— Other financial instruments - HihemT A 250,731 231,247
— Financial products (note (b)) — & §h & a (K EE () 31,842,259 28,508,811
51,128,906 43,528,232
Total financial assets at fair value through Z A FEFAEBZHN &R
profit or loss BEME 58,991,198 47,861,469
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20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital
appreciation and investment income. The interests held by the Group are
in the form of participating shares which provide the Group with the share
of returns from the investment funds, but not any decision making power
nor any voting right. Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests
without holding any voting right or substantial decision making power as
principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity
investments, listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted
equity investments and derivatives. As at 31 December 2019, cash collateral
of HK$402.5 million (2018: HK$987.6 million) and securities collateral of
HK$327.8 million (2018: HK$310.0 million) were placed to the counterparties.

The financial products acquired by the Group are primarily driven by
customers' investment needs and used as hedging instruments for structured
notes issued under the MTN Programme (note 27), financial liabilities (note
28) or derivative instruments acquired by customers (note 21). As a result,
the variable return of these financial products is not significant.

20. A FEFENAE &5 0 4 b
& ()

B

(a)

AEERENRRAHBREES N
EREABEREBERA XK
BAZBREASAER  HEA
KSEALSEZREESHESERE -
B E\EMRREREMER
o ZERNAKEEREESES
M EEFMBERERNEZTEAR
ERRRE  REREDERE
AFEFABENEREE °

AEEREMCRERBIELT
RAKZE  ETEHERE - L
MESKRE  FETREAKER
FETIARA -RZT—NAF+=A
=t+—HB GRRAXSYFHNE
£ RI025EE BT (=T —
J\ 4 : 98768 8 % Jt) &327.8R
BETELFERR(ZT—N\F:
310.0B8 A T) °

AEEBASRERDNEIERE
FRERAEFRES  WIESRE
THERAEBRTHERERRE
(Bf&x27) - & @ A& (M FE28) %
BERPWEBMITET A (218
HHETA -Fit ZEcRER
ZAEEBFEAERK -

BRERBERZERERRQA | 20195 %

231



Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 o B ik

31 December 2019
—EF-hEFt=A=+-8

21. Derivative financial instruments 21. fikem T A
The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial TREVCHBREENBENIT
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional EeMTANAFEERERE
amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a SR MMM BESRARS
derivative's underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis METEHRBEE  2FEXR
upon which changes in the value of the derivative are measured. The EHNEeHE YRITATIAEE
notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at FTESFMEE ZFESHEXRPB
the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit RERRTHRHIZXZE BT E
risk. mEERITIEEERBHER -
Fair value
AT HE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
ERLHE EE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THER THER
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NF
+=—A=+—H
Cross currency swaps XX B ¥ H 385,158 - (7.835)
Interest rate swaps 7| 2 4= 5 8,705,703 7,058 (24,488)
Foreign exchange forwards = Bf SN[ 10,876,458 86,817 (58,448)
Index futures EEHE 259,072 - (735)
Options HA #E 1,097,155 41,042 (16,902)
Currency options B 233,670 1,593 -
Warrants R B 497,671 - (28,188)
Dividend swaps iz B2 42,000 - (485)
Credit default swaps 5 B & #) 12 5 934,680 5,523 (276)
Other equity derivatives HMRASTETER 881,597 13,619 (12,494)

23,913,164 155,652 (149,851)
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

21.

Notional
amount

HAETH

HK$'000
TAET

4w T Hoe

Fair value

AF(E

Assets Liabilities
BE B &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAE T FAT

As at 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+=—A=+—8H

Cross currency swaps R X E &= B = = =
Interest rate swaps F) 2 45 B 1,890,418 15,002 1,333
Foreign exchange forwards iR B SN EE 6,174,072 26,038 16,146
Index futures BHHE 292,826 1,585 65
Options HA 1 4,884,938 749 4,840
Warrants R = = =
Equity swaps P& 4 = Hf =
Index swaps 15 #i= B 197,083 = 1,236
Credit default swaps 5 B & 4= 5 783,150 8,236 =
Equity forwards i HA iR 184,717 25,222 -

14,407,204 76,832 23,620

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. ("ISDA") master netting agreements or similar
agreements with substantially all of its derivative counterparties.
Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give the
Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with the same

counterparty. As at 31 December 2019, amounts of cash collateral of
HK$78.4 million and HK$84.9 million were paid to and received from
respective counterparties (2018: HK$261.1 million and HK$49.1 million),
which are included in "accounts receivable and accounts payable
arising from brokerage — brokers and dealers" in notes 18 and 24 to
the financial statements respectively.

REBEBRNBAYITAETLA
RSPHEIMBEE R RITE
& % & (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc.)
([ISDAY) /5 28 # 35 42 19 =& = FB PU 199
o EHOEA BB AITHERT -
Mﬁ/%"%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ% BT AEE
BAAKIEEERR S FNER
FEWRREeERR - R=2F—H1
F+-_A=1+—H RefKHFRE
BEHRI78.48 BB T KB4LIE &S
TR TREEHREEBRZSH (=
T —)\F: 261 18 &% T k4918
BETT) - R BIETE MR KR KT
FE18 8 248 [ 4% 40 25 745 i WK TE [
JERNEIE - BRERXFZHE] -
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22. Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements

23.

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises when the
securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent agreement to
resell at a specified later date and price. These securities are not
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
as the counterparty retains substantially all risks and returns of the
securities. The amount paid by the Group is recognised as receivable.
In the event of default by the counterparty, the Group has the right
to sell the underlying securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding amount paid for the
reverse repurchase agreements was HK$2,247,913,000 (2018:
HK$3,109,006,000) and was recognised as receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements.

The fair value of collateral received from clients and financial liabilities
held for trading received as collateral for the outstanding receivable
at the year-end was HK$3,539,078,000 (2018: HK$3,096,454,000).

Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and client
trust bank balances

R E
R1T7 77 3K

Non-current
Bank deposits

23. SRATHK

22 J 16 [T S fah v M MAC Ak

[ [7) [B] B 13 7 2 FE W R TR AN £R
EREREFREL  ESRKE
VEmEAREEERARR
EREE ZF[HFLERNAE
BReMBHRARRPER  REA
ER 5 TR E % EF &R E AR
gl N QU N SR DR VRN
HERBEWFIA - MR HHE
o AEEBEGLEREEREFN
ERGEBFHREYFE -

R-ZB—NE+-A=+—8
17 [B] B8 15 5% 2 B oK 45 05 s E
£2,247,913,0008 70 (=T — )\ F :
3,109,006,0007% 7T) * W HER AR
A [20 B 199 = FE W B3R o

RERBREPUBMNERRRE
W B 1 & K 45 75 1B R 3k T8 35 38 &
WIS EFEESRIBEN A TER
3,539,078,000/8 ;L (=& — N\ :
3,096,454,0007% 7T ) °

Bl Je Bl & 5%
B & % P AR w6 SR AT 45 Bk

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
FE&xT

66,440 =
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23. Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and client 23. $Ri7F# - B4 kB &%

trust bank balances (continued) Y K% P15 we AT 45 i
(%)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T T T
Current Vi
Cash and bank balances Be RIBTHES 5,857,542 3,896,502
Time deposits E B TF R 1,293,305 209,170
— with original maturity of less than - REBHELR=@A
three months 1,096,348 104,696
— with original maturity of more than - REHPABR=A
three months, but less than one year BLR—F 196,957 104,474
Total cash and cash equivalents BHe MRS EYETR 7,150,847 405,672

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHE T
Non-current FE &
Bank deposits denominated in: RUATEBAHENRITER:
Vietnamese Dong ("VND") MrmE(wEED 66,440 =
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH&T
Current &
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in: EA NEEFENR S X
ReEEYW:
HK$ A TT 1,910,007 842,062
US$ ETT 4,838,350 3,181,992
RMB AR 284,762 44,965
VND BEE 91,640 -
Others Hth 26,088 36,653
7,150,847 4,105,672
Bank deposits are made for 13 months depending on the cash BEASENRSFR  RIT7F
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time B EA13ME A - I LA A FE &Y TE HR
deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with FRFERERAE - ZFHE#RE
no history of default. GFAGEERFEEBRIE LR
7
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23. Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and client 23. SRATFE#K - B4 KB4 4%

trust bank balances (continued) {E%&K}ﬁf“ ab SR AT 45 iR
()
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITMESERTHRITE R ZE
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between RFEHEFE - EHEFERNT
one day and six months depending on the cash requirements of the HERAEENREFRKME -
Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank NF—REANEA - WIRHEBETE
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no history of HMERMEFE - RITERETF
default. AGERFEREXRELHRT
H o
As at 31 December 2019, the ECL allowance of bank deposits, cash RZZE—-—NAF+=-A=+—H " &
and cash equivalents, and client trust bank balances amounted to TER RekReZFEYVEE
HK$2,751,000 (2018: HK$8,343,000) aggregately. All of them are PERARTESKNIEHREAEX
classified as Stage 1 under the ECL model and there was no transfer BHEA 527510008 (=ZF —
to/from the other stages. J\E 18,343,000/ 7T) * ¥ %K I&E HH

ERBRRIE D EFIER
WAREAEEEMBEER -

24. Accounts payable 24. FEATHKIH

2019 2018
—®-nE —T)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET

Accounts payable arising from brokerage K40 ST PE S FRIE

— clients - %P 11,611,433 14,840,232
— brokers and dealers -RBREkX58 926,467 1,110,459
— the Stock Exchange and other — BERR P R Hph A P

clearing houses 745,612 302,901

Accounts payable arising from securities BHBEEBEMNKIE

borrowing and lending 519,380 730,926
Accounts payable arising from corporate TERE BEE

finance, asset management, financial TRE®  Mm- &é{

products, market making, investments ETE R H AL B

and others 782,358 1,897,770

Accounts payable arising from insurance 1R B2 28 40 AR 755 & A~ 3R IR
brokerage services 2,122 1,553

14,587,372 18,883,841
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24. Accounts payable (continued) 24, FEATKIH (#)
The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except RNEBD BT RIBEREREEE
for certain accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits HETENTFTEFPORER/RET
received from clients for their trading activities in the normal course of PREFXBGBIERETERSE
business. Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits HUBMEFORE RN - R
stipulated are repayable on demand. BEBREREFSHSEANREXK
REREP o
The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within AEEERE—BEERARERE
one business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion FIBNRER - REEI | E
of the directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in RO REAAESEREIZ
view of the nature of these businesses. EEBHMNE  BREREEROTH
ZRHEEINEE -
Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust BN FEFHRBATBEEBRR
accounts with authorised institutions of HK$11,182 million (2018: RAKBRETLEFLMNNIGE S
HK$14,320 million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation BL(ZZ —/\F 143208 8%
Limited and other futures dealers of HK$284 million (2018: HK$296 ) BEABMEEEARARIRE
million). EE R ZEA284E BB T (=
T—N\F:206HEBTT) -
Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services include REREEREENKIESRE
those payables in trust accounts with authorised institutions of RAKBETERP O ERMNK
HK$2,122,000 (2018: HK$1,553,000). Accounts payable are non- 182,122,000% T (= & — J\ F:
interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to clients. 1,553,000 7T) © BRFE & P RIE
O BRI AER o
25. Other payables and accrued liabilities 25, oAt Ak RO S FE R B

2019
ZE-NF

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
THE T

HK$'000
T8 T

Other payables H th FE T 5RI8 21,283 205,958
Accrued liabilities i A E 562,843 331,442
584,126 537,400

Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and
have an average term of three months.

S {4 308 AR AT B (99 A
g FHBRA=MEA -
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26. Interest bearing borrowings

At S K

2019 2018
—B-nE —ET)\F
HK$'000

HK$'000
TRERT TAET

Non-current: JERED
Lease liabilities HEAE 23,368 =
Current: mE)
Lease liabilities HEaRE 25,403 =
Unsecured bank borrowings AR SR 1T E K 7,711,110 9,441,083
Secured bank borrowings BEMRITER 3,490,000 =
e 11,226,513 9,441,083
Total interest bearing borrowings STEER AR 11,249,881 9,441,083

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000

HK$'000
THERT TAT

Denominated in: BATERERE:
HK$ 7B T 3,533,730 4,100,000
Us$ X 7,711,110 5,341,083
Other currencies Hh & 5,041 =
11,249,881 9,441,083

The secured bank borrowings of HK$3,490 million (2018: nil) were
secured by listed shares, which were held by the Group as collateral
for advances to customers in margin financing, of market value
HK$6,239.5 million (2018: nil).

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered
Rate plus an interest spread.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair
values as the impact on discounting is not significant.
The Group's lease liabilities bear weighted average interest rate at

4.23% per annum.
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27. Debt securities in issue

27.

2019
ZE-NEF

HK$'000
TR

BB AT % W 57

2018
ZT-N\F
HK$'000
TAET

Non-current ERB
At amortised cost (note(a)): T8 5 RN (B 5 (a)
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE LT EE R E 1,555,874 =
Designated at fair value through profit or 3 E & A FE A B
loss (note (b)): (B 5E(0)) :
Structured notes issued in relation to ERTHERERERZ
financial products EEMEE 6,124,020 4,841,178
7,679,894 4,841,178
Current Vi)
At amortised cost (note(a)): T8 5 RN (B 5 (a)
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE LT\ H 4 5,128,330 6,721,259
Designated at fair value through profit or 3T & A FE A B
loss (note (b)): (B 5E (o)) -
Structured notes issued in relation to ERTHERERERZ
financial products EEMER 20,691,358 14,436,835
e 25,819,688 21,158,094
33,499,582 25,999,272
Unsecured medium-term notes BT E % 5E D
denominated in: AR R B R
Us$ = 3,129,957 4,081,371
HK$ 7B T 3,196,168 2,624,053
RMB AR 12,259 15,835
Other currencies H g 345,820 =
e 6,684,204 6,721,259
Structured notes issued in relation to BTN EBIEBENEETH
financial products denominated in: TREMBREZABNT
Eig
EUR BL T 22,476 66,927
HK$ B TT 1,984,614 1,114,482
Us$ ETT 22,542,077 17,662,217
RMB AR 1,959,014 434,387
Other currencies H b g 307,197 =
e 26,815,378 19,278,013
33,499,582 25,999,272
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27.

Debt securities in iSSue (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The outstanding balance of HK$6,684.2 million (2018: HK$6,721.3 million)
stated at amortised cost represents the amount of unsecured notes issued
by the Company under the Company's Medium Term Note Programme (the
“MTN Programme"). As at 31 December 2019, the debt securities in issue
bore fixed interest rates ranging from 1.1% to 4.25% (2018: 1.0% to 3.5%).
The carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their
fair values as the impact on discounting is not significant.

The outstanding balance of HK$26,815 million (2018: HK$19,278 million)
represented the amount of unlisted structured notes which arose from selling
structured products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments
related to listed equity investments, listed debt investments, unlisted debt
investments, unlisted fund investments and derivatives.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other

breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2018: Nil).

Part of debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the Group
has a practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the settlement

date.
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28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

FIEEEMERAE:

Financial liabilities held for trading:

28. FEA PR H 25 Y 5 il

=

ZE-NF

2019 2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000

TET

HK$'000
T8 T

— Listed equity securities — TR R 5 20,472 41,913
— Listed fixed income securities - FTETEWRERBS 2,200,728 3,334,378

Financial liabilities designated at fair value 1§ T A FEFABZEN

through profit or loss =R

— Financial products (note (a)) - R ESFIE@) 4,103,810 5,037,089
— Other financial instruments - EfhemTH 55,386 =

— Third-party interests in consolidated - MAEBHBREESH
investment funds (note (b)) F=FH (M FEb) 430,184 317,737
6,810,580 8,731,117

Notes:

(a) Included in the fair value in financial products is cash collateral of HK$480
million (31 December 2018: HK$1,577 million) received from counterparty.

The amount of change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, during the year and cumulatively, attributable to changes in
own credit risk was insignificant.

(b) Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds consist of third-party
unitholders' interests in consolidated investment funds which are reflected as
liabilities since they can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
third-party interests in investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy
since these represent the interests of third-party unitholders in consolidated
investment funds that are subject to market risk and the actions of third-
party investors.

B 5

(a)

CMERZATEBERYTF
77U BN B 3R & 4K 3 480E & B
T(ZE—NF+=-A=+—8:
15778 BB TT) °

RER  BASEERREHT
MRS REAFEHA BRGNS
RABATFELBNSEL DY
FEAX -

MAEHERERENE=7#an
BEMAGHEBREEENE=]
BAEAAEZD  ARNZSHER
REAREBAKEE S - 5
REE -REESHE=THa
MR EREREER - HDEAM
BEARAMAGHEREESN
FZTEUBAANER AR
HRTSEBREE=ZTREEN
I5 e
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements 29. [nl i foh v A9 £ I
The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the securities AEERBEOBHBELER 5
are sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to repurchase at HETRKF M —HEBENIRZETE
a specified later date and price. The amount received by the Group is HEeERHREREEZES A&
recognised as liabilities as the Group retains substantially all risks and ERBmOREERREE R
returns of the securities. EASEEREZFNB RIS R
% & B4R o
As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding amount received RZE—NLF+=-_A=+—8"
from repurchase agreements was HK$18,199,226,000 (2018: B0z WA AR & B RIEA
HK$13,156,517,000) which was recognised as obligations under 18,199,226,000/8 T (=& — )\ 4 :
repurchase agreements. 13,156,517,0005& 70) » WHE R A (D

BHENEE -

Fair value of financial assets under the repurchase agreements: CfEER TR EEMN R TE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET

Financial assets held for trading and REEBERRENEREE

investments

— Listed fixed income securities — T EE W E S 7,997,279 6,174,839

— Unlisted fixed income securities - ELEMETREE S 194,100 219,346
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEGFABREN

profit or loss TRLEE

— Financial products - 2R EmM 13,800,325 12,520,221
Clients' pledged securities BEFERES 1,678,215 =

23,669,919 18,914,406
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30. Other equity instrument

31

On 15 June 2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated
perpetual securities (the "Perpetual Securities”) with an initial
distribution rate of 4.5% per annum. Distributions are paid semi-
annually in arrears and the first distribution date was 30 October
2016. The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer any
distribution. The Perpetual Securities do not have a maturity date
and are only callable at the Company's discretion on 30 April 2019
or on any distribution payment date after 30 April 2019. After 30
April 2019, the distribution rate will be reset to the 3-year US swap
rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company
and are classified as equity instruments and recorded as equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has fully
repurchased/redeemed all the outstanding securities.

Share capital

30.

31.

3 Al B 28 T H

RZEBE—XREXA+HEHH ' AQ
RIBITIRETH R FKERE FH
(CkBEZRH]D VB DIRERSE
450 o 5K R B F H R R
S ERDRBEAEZZT—RF
+A=+H - ARRIA2#ATTE
BIEEFMDIK o KEFFILE
BB EARAGERNRZZ—N
FOMA=1+Hx%K =T —NFWA
= THENEADIEZNTBEBET
@bl - —E—NFHA=1TH% -
APERERER R =FEHETIEH
T'JTJJDETS% o XEBFEF B A
REIMEE  BEYG RERE
KHEEE THEAsEZTA:
RiEEMBMRRARPERIEER -

RBE_Z-hF+_A=+—
RLEFE AARBEREER
BOFMARBEINES

JBe A

Number of
issued and
fully paid
shares  Share capital
ERITRAR
R4 E A R 2%
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\FE—H—H 7,005,680,485 6,118,060
Shares issued upon placing of shares Bl & AR D12 B2 17 IR 1D 700,000,000 1,992,848
Shares issued upon exercise of share BAIREEIIE T /T B AR
options under the share option scheme i % 17 &9 Bz £ (Kf 5£32)
(note 32) 9,992,605 14,948
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and RZ=ZT—N\%F
31 December 2019 +=A E
—T-hF— ﬂ H &
“ZE-hF+-_A=+—H 7715673090 8,125,856
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32. Share option reserve

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and
motivating key staff members. The board of directors has the discretion
to grant share options to employees and directors of any members
of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date (i.e., 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000 shares).
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares). Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.
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32. Share option reserve (continued) 32.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

On 11 September 2019, the Company granted 18,200,000 share
options at the exercise price of HK$1.45 per share to its directors and
employees under the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options
granted, 4,000,000 share options were granted to the directors of the
Company. The option period of the share options is from 11 September
2019 to 10 September 2029. Every one-third of the share options
granted will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries
of the date of grant respectively. The closing price of the Company's
shares prior to the date of grant (i.e., 10 September 2019) was HK$1.37
per share.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on
the date of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used for the
share options granted in 2019:

Share price at the date of grant (per share) HK$1.39
Exercise price (per share) HK$1.45
Expected volatility 49.79%
Expected dividend yield 4.46%
Risk-free interest rate 1.10%
Weighted average share option price (per share) HK$0.52

The expected volatility and the expected dividend vyield reflect the
assumptions that the historical volatility and the historical dividend
yield, respectively, are indicative of future trends, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

BRENTEERESET -
AAERRT&RRE : ()AAF K
MREREZORRER I
W B R(i)ADA R OREER
ZHRMAAER S A EBRA
B FEH U THE -

RZZFE—AFNLA+—H A2Q
AEREBEBRENZRTEES
BilasE tmEESREEBR N
18,200,00017 5 Az #E o 1£ FT % B&
A% #E & R 4,000,00017 B A% 4 7
BTFARAMNES - BREMNH
MBHE=—E—NAFNAA+—RHZE=
T_AFENATAL - - FIRER
EHE=s2— 825 REEHA
HWE—  — = BFEEEHEE -
AARRHARBLZBAI(AI=ZF
—NFAAT+HE)METELSERK
1.3778 7T ©

NS EEBRENRAFETE
R-BEAEEELRNRHEASRE
TTEEH - URARBRERL A
R IR B R SR S MR -

TRIBER-_FE-NFREZE
BEMMARIENTES

inEs-qul =Rzl g 1.397% 7T
(%)

TEEER) 1.457%8 7©

T8 HA R 1@ 49.79%

T8 HA % B M e & 4.46%

= 3 B FI & 1.10%

MEFHEREER 0528

€29

T8 B8 08 K TR B AR B M R R R R
BN R KB B B s X Al
ERKBEEENERR Mkt
BT ERERGR -
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32. Share option reserve (continued)

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise
price and the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the
outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion
of the bonus issue

BREARBITTRA

Number of

Date of share options Exercise price outstanding

granted per share options

RATE

REBRENAY BRITEE BRENRE

24[4[2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448
248 7T

10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910
37978 T

11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000
14.5678 7T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meetings.

No share option was exercised during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: 9,992,605 share options), resulting in the issue of no share
(2018: 9,992,605 shares) for a total cash consideration of nil (2018:
HK$11,177,000). No amount (2018: HK$3,771,000) was transferred
from the share option reserve to the share capital account upon the
exercise of the share options. After adjustment for the bonus issue, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options
exercised during the year was nil per share (2018: HK$2.38).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, GJIHL has recognised an
equity-settled share-based compensation expense of HK$6,798,000
for the share options under the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss
(2018: HK$5,297,000).
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32. B HE ok il o)
RoB—RELANBERAR

BITR  HEKRTEBREST
BITREZENRDOITEERK
B ORI B B b 5 &) /O IR SR B
wmr

Immediately after the completion
of the bonus issue
EHEARBTERE

Adjusted number
Adjusted exercise  of outstanding
price per share options
RAE RKBABRGTE
BRITEE BRENEE
HK$0.827 14,569,344
0.827%8 7T
HK$1.264 110,879,730
1.2647% 7T
HK$4.854 13,500,000
4.8547 7T
BREYEBETHEAZRBE

IRBERAELEREZER -

HE-_ZT—hhF+=-A=1+—8H
IEFE - BEHOERERETEC
T — )\ 4 : 9,992,605(7 & AL #E) -
BT OHET(ZE—N\F:
9,992,6050% f& 13) + RIREIR & 1K
BHEBET(ZE—\F: 11,177,000

BIT) o MBI EEITEZ -
B(ZZ—N\F: 3771000,%7E>EE|

BREREERERAR X5
ARABRERNFRNETENER
BRITEEHRNNEFSRES
BRE(ZZE-NF:238%T)°

BE_T-AF+_-_A=+—H
LEE BRELZBEEREZERES
BRETIETNERERER

BRNAESEEUARDAERD
5 (& 51 56,798,000/ 7T (= ZE— )\

£F 1 5,297,000/ 7T) °
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32. Share option reserve (continued) 32.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, 100,000, 50,000 and

HE-_Z-—NLFT+HA=+—

9,000,000 share options were lapsed, forfeited and cancelled (2018:
2,050,000 and 3,000,000 share options were lapsed and forfeited,
respectively) prior to the vesting date.

H It % E - 100,000 * 50,0005
9,000,000 & P& #E 1A 57 B B HA A
KRB RFHE(ZE—N\F:

2 Bl 52,050,000%.3,000,00017 &
A% e 2L ek R R o

2019 2018
—B-NF —B-N\F

Weighted Weighted

EVHED S average

exercise exercise price
price HK$  Number of HK$ per Number of
per share options share options

ke 35 DN#E 15

TEE TE(E
gRET BREHE BRET HBREZHE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 1.971 65,844,303 2.071 70,886,908
Granted during the year FRRE 1.450 18,200,000 1.720 10,000,000
Forfeited during the year F AR 1.720 (50,000) 4.854 (3,000,000)
Lapsed during the year FRKK 1.720 (100,000) 4154  (2,050,000)
Cancelled during the year F AT 4.854 (9,000,000) = =
Exercised during the year FRITE - - 1.119 (9,992,605)
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—8H 1.498 74,894,303 1.971 65,844,303

At 31 December 2019, the Company had 74,894,303 (2018: RZZFB-NF+-_A=+—H &

65,844,303) share options outstanding under the Share Option NEIH 74,894,303 (= F—\F :

Scheme, which represents approximately 0.97% (2018: 0.85%) of the
Company's shares in issue as at 31 December 2019. The exercise in
full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 74,894,303 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$112,193,000 (before issuance expenses). The option periods of the
share options are from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021, from 10 January
2014 to 9 January 2024, from 13 July 2017 to 12 July 2027, 4 July
2018 to 3 July 2028 and 11 September 2019 to 10 September 2029.

65,844,30317) 8 AR #E & &1 I8 T &)
RITERBIRE - (HARRRZE
—hWF+-—A=+—BEETKH
#9470.97% (== —/\4 : 0.85%) °
BIBEARRERNEARARE  BH
BB IRERETE B EEN
2%£1774,894,303 % A~ A @ A%
VA K 58 Hh B% 725112,193,00078 7T (K&
MBREITRS) - BRENEET
FHMA-_ZT——F£NHA=-+MH
AE—_Z_—FAhA -ZF—
WE—R+HEE=-ZE=-mE—Ah
B —E—+tF+A+=H==_F
—t+tFEtA+=—H - N\FLt
AMNBE_ZE-_N\F+ A=Ak
E-NhFALA+—BE=-Z_h
FAA+A-
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33.

Share award reserve

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme
(the "Share Award Scheme") under which shares of the Company (the
‘Awarded Shares") may be awarded to selected employees (including
directors) of any members of the Group (the "Selected Employees")
pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the
Share Award Scheme. The share award scheme became effective on
the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the
Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The
maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to
a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000
shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time of making the award
and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject
of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares
to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award
Scheme shall be exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain
from voting.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report
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33. Share award reserve (continued) 33. By 5% Bhfik e )

R=B—hE+=A=+—BHY
o 85 B 0 4% B R 1) 0 ¥ 051

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31
December 2019 are set out below:

m
Number of Number of Number of Number of
Average fair Awarded Awarded Awarded Awarded
Date of Awarded value per Shares Shares Shares Shares Vesting
Shares granted share granted vested lapsed unvested dates
BRI RURE CHRERB CAXRD KREERRB
RHRBRG BB AFE BROHNHE KRONBE RONBE KROWHEAE HEAH
13/4/2018 HK$2.36 34,804,000 (21,450,000) (3,690,000 9,664,000 30/11/2020
2.36/8 7T
16/4/2019 HK$1.60 34,872,000 (11,767,000 (1,824,000) 10,667,000 30/11/2020
1.6078 7T
10,614,000 30/11/2021

The Group has recognised a share-based compensation expense of
HK$57,325,000 for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme
in profit or loss (2018: HK$69,471,000). 29,027,000 Awarded Shares
have been either transferred to the grantees or sold in accordance
with their instructions at no cost (2018: 26,063,000 Awarded Shares)
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

3,826,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a
result of staff resignation for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
3,908,000 Awarded Shares).

After considering the number of shares which were granted in
prior years, as at 31 December 2019, the total number of the
Awarded Shares that can be awarded was 2,509,000 which represent
approximately 0.03% of the Company's shares in issue as at 31
December 2019.

AEBEE MR MDEREIETNL
BRI (DR ERERUR G AE
it /9 78 18 A 257,325,000/ 7T (=
T— )\ : 69,471,000/ 7T) - HZE
—T-AF+-_A=+—HIEF
JE + 29,027,000/ ZZEE XD E L ZE
BN B8 2 T AR A SR IR 1R S B
R E (ZZ— )\ : 26,063,000
A% 52 B A% 1) ©

HE_ZZ—NLEF+=ZA=+
—BLEFE - AREL#FE:
3,826,000/% 4% By fi% 0 (=& — N\
£ : 3,908,0008% 42 B % 17) 1 57 /B
HEFRT R 2K -

KERBBAFEMED ZRMHE
B R=_BE-—NAF+=ZA=+—
B AlETRBOEBRGOEH
/£2,509,0000% + #)1h KRR R
E—NF+_A=+—HB %]
% 17 B9 490.03% -
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34. Shares held under the Share Award Scheme

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the
year are as follows:

34. JeAn SE M wt B IEH T R A

Jie Ay

R fn S Rt 81 IR T 1758 89 AR 1D 7
FAMEEHMT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F

Number of Number of

HK$'000 shares HK$'000 shares

F#& T B 8B FA T k4=

At 1 January A—H—H 142,051 63,416,400 181,281 61,800,400

Purchased during the year RERNEE 4,004 2,500,000 52,579 27,679,000
Vested and transferred out REAFBED

during the year (72,997) (29,027,000) (91,809) (26,063,000)

At 31 December R+=—ZA=+—8H 73,058 36,889,400 142,051 63,416,400

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the trustee acquired
2,500,000 ordinary shares (2018: 27,679,000 ordinary shares) of the
Company for the Share Award Scheme through purchases in the
open market at a total cost, including related transaction costs, of
approximately HK$4,004,000 (2018: HK$52,579,000).

35. Other Reserve

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
represents a merger reserve, being the difference between the
issued share capital of HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium of
HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and issued to GJHL in
exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report
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36. &

36. Commitments

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and
renovation of premises of approximately HK$6,180,000 which were
contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$9,575,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO,
takeover and merger activities and financial obligations to loan
facilities granted to customers. As at 31 December 2019, the
underwriting and financial obligations were approximately HK$6 million
and nil respectively (2018: HK$451 million and HK$53 million).

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payables under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

N

REBRABREG L MEREE
& 7] & E 496,180,000 TT 0 3%
REEAHNELTAR-_ZT—NF
+—A=1+—BFUBHECZT—
J\EE + 9,575,000 7T) °

3 Aty 7K 35

AEBAREE BRAREE -
WERAFEBAEABEEAR
AETEFHNENRERERSE
Ef -RZZE—NAF+-A=+
—B AEEBEEESFNOAR
EBABTLEE(ZF —/\F 451
AEBTKR3EEBT) °

BT )\F+ZA=+—H
Ay 48 5 LB R 4
R-Z—\F+-A=+—-R &
SERBETUBHBELERELET
st 51 IR P9 B A 6 oK O A 0 1
HERREBOT :

2018
—N\F

HK$'000
TAET

20,851

“EhRFRREEREMF) 33,192

54,043
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37. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(a) Directors and chief executive’s current emoluments
The current emoluments of every director of the Company paid/

payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2019

37. EHLBERTBA B &

(@ TEHEEEHITBAEBB
F I 4
REBHZE-"ZT-NER—-
- N\F+=—_A=+—HIE
FEEM/BAARREE
EREANMESEWT

BE-_F-NFt+=A=+
—HILEFE

Employer's
contribution

Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary  to pension
fees  allowances

EZHRE HFEREW
HK$'000 HK$'000

Name of director TER

TER

bonuses scheme Total

EEmEEK
BERA MR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR

Executive directors: HITEE:

Yim Fung (note (i) 7 (B 72 (1) - 3,755 9,374 18 13,147

Wong Tung Ching L5 - 3,528 5,621 18 9,167

Qi Haiying FiipisE=d - 3,480 7,055 18 10,553

Li Guangjie FRA - 3,420 4,996 18 8,434

Non-executive directors: HHITEE:

Liu Yiyong 2% 3 - - - - -

Xie Lebin B0 - - - - -

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE:

directors:

Fu Tingmei BEE 550 - - - 550

Song Ming R 550 - - - 550

Tsang Yiu Keung 2oy 550 - - - 550

Chan Ka Keung Ceajer B % 58 400 - - - 400
2,050 14,183 27,046 72 43,351
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37.

hE+=ZA=+—H
and chief executive’s emoluments

Directors’
(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s current emoluments
(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018

(@)

37. EHF KT BME
(#)

FREAEEBITBEANBS
IF I 4 (2)
Bz-—2-NF+=-A=+
—ALLEE

Employer's
contribution
Directors'  Salaries and Discretionary ~ to pension
fees  allowances bonuses scheme
{E F R
EZWe FeREN BEREL &R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director THET TET TET THET TET
Executive directors: HITEE:
Yim Fung B & - 3,755 6,552 18 10,325
Wong Tung Ching IT&F = 3,528 3,780 18 7,326
Qi Haiying B % - 3,481 6,650 18 10,149
Li Guangjie FRA = 3,420 4312 18 7750
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Liu Yiyong G - - - - -
Xie Lebin EIE3T) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors:
Fu Tingmei BEX 550 - - - 550
Song Ming K& 550 - - - 550
Tsang Yiu Keung Bk 550 - - - 550
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer BRRaE 145 = = = 145
1,795 14,184 21,294 72 37,345

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

Note (i):  Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer

of the Company.

FRAALEEZHEZTHA
B R Sk R B E (A Hr B
B2 B o

HIRE(): PIIES L AR AT

BEERITHREH -
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37. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

(b)

Directors and chief executive’s deferred emoluments

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors' and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share
award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements. As at 31
December 2019, the total number of the Awarded Shares
awarded to directors amounted to 5,461,000 and a share-based
compensation expense of HK$11.9 million has been recognised
in profit or loss.

The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated in
the below table represents amortisation to profit or loss of the
fair value of these share options and awarded shares granted to
the directors measured at the respective grant dates.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report
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(b) HHLEmEITBAHRE

JiE T <

RER > BETEERARF
BREAIETHRESLAE
) £2 £ B B 75 1 2 3% RE A
B E— S H BN YR
KM FE32 - ARABRENR
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37. Directors’

(continued)

(b) Directors and chief executive’s deferred emoluments

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Name of director

Executive directors:

BITEE:

and chief executive’s emoluments

37. EHEEBERITBA B &

(%)

(b) HEHLEETBARE

Wt T 4 ()

ME-2-AF+=A=+

—HLEE

Share-based compensation reserve
URHOAERBEME
Share option scheme

BRETE

Date of

grant

RHBAM

Share option
expense
(Note 32)

BRERX
(Pt 5£32)
HK$'000

FExT

Share award scheme

B4 % R a8

Date of
grant

RHBAH

Share award
expense
(Note 33)
% 12
REEX
(Bt =E33)
HK$'000
FHET

Yim Fung (note (i) & (B 5E (i) 13/7/2017 179  13/4/2017 519
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 1,207
11/9/2019 95! 16/4/2019 1,290
Wong Tung Ching FLEH 13/7/2017 179  13/4/2017 524
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 1,219
11/9/2019 95! 16/4/2019 744
Qi Haiying 1B 13/7/2017 179  13/4/2017 384
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 1,093
11/9/2019 95! 16/4/2019 1,309
Li Guangjie RN 13/7/2017 179  13/4/2017 251
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 794
11/9/2019 95! 16/4/2019 849
Non-executive directors: — FEHTTEF -
Liu Yiyong 2= B = =
Xie Lebin FIEm) - -
Independent non- BUIBHTEE -
executive directors:
Fu Tingmei HiEx - =
Song Ming N B - -
Tsang Yiu Keung B 1R 58 - -
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer PR K 58 = -
1,696 10,183
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37. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments 37. #FHE M EEITH A B4

(continued) (&)

(b) Directors and chief executive’s deferred emoluments (b)y EHEAERITBANBE
(continued) At i 4 ()
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-N\F+=A=1

—HILEFEE

Share-based compensation reserve
A B 1 7% 25 it 40 B (2 4

Share option scheme Share award scheme
i R 7 51 & % 17 #2 B 5t &
Share option Share award
Date of expense Date of expense
grant (note 32) grant (note 33)
i
B AR BB X
KB (B 7£32) XA (Bt 5£33)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director FA T FAET
Executive directors: HITESE
Yim Fung (note (i) 1 (P 3£ () 13/7/2017 405 18/4/2016 761
4/7/2018 101 13/4/2017 1,404
13/4/2018 2,200
Wong Tung Ching TXF 13/7/2017 405 18/4/2016 903
4/7/2018 101 13/4/2017 1,419
13/4/2018 2,222
Qi Haiying AR 11/6/2015 756 18/4/2016 563
13/7/2017 405 13/4/2017 1,039
4/7/2018 101 13/4/2018 1,991
Li Guangjie ZRAR 13/7/2017 405 18/4/2016 451
4/7/2018 101 13/4/2017 680
13/4/2018 1,449
Non-executive directors: — FE#H7TEF -
Liu Yiyong 2 %5 B - -
Xie Lebin EIES - -
Independent non- HUIHHTESE
executive directors:
Fu Tingmei HiEx - -
Song Ming N - -
Tsang Yiu Keung 2 o - -
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer PR 2R 98 - -
2,780 15,082
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37. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments 37. EHEEEITBE A B4

(continued) (#&)

(b) Directors and chief executive’s deferred emoluments (b)y EHERERITBANBE
(continued) At 4 ()
Note (i): Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer MEaE() : BEEELTARRARBMIT

of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors received
total remuneration amounting to HK$55.2 million (2018: HK$55.2
million), which included share-based compensation and share
award expenses of approximately HK$1.7 million (2018: HK$2.8
million) attributable to share options granted and of HK$10.2
million (2018: HK$15.1 million) attributable to share awards
granted by Company, part of which was in respect of their
services to the Company.

BEERITHRAER

HE—_Z—NF+-A=+
—HIEFE ESRENH
Biasa A5 2B EB T (-
—\F 55288 T) B
R N/NCI B dunl o) 4 g )
AR B E R E & %G5
BERAZ M IEEET(Z
TZ-N\F:28BEB TR
BEMR G ZEEL10.28
EBT(ZE—/\F 1518
BT HRB2TIHE
LRARAIREN RS M
o
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(@) Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Share-based compensation expense

Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial
instruments measured at fair value
through profit and loss

Unrealised loss/(gain) on debt
securities in issue

Unrealised loss on derivative financial
instruments

Finance cost

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of intangible assets

Loss on deposits forfeited

Effect of impairment allowance on
loans and advances to customers,
net

Effect of impairment allowance on
accounts receivable, net

Foreign exchange adjustment on
provision of impairment on accounts
receivable

Effect of impairment allowance on
client trust bank balance, net

Effect of impairment allowance on loan
commitments, net

Effect of impairment allowance on
other receivables, net

Effect of impairment allowance on
receivable from reverse repurchase
agreements, net

Effect of impairment allowance on
cash and cash equivalents, net

Effect of impairment allowance on
bank deposits, net

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report

A B Bl 4 i B A% B Rk

() KL 35 B A 2k 1y Bl & i

%
2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
FExT
EEHELENBEESRE
f% TR Al 4 1,005,443
P
e 65,078
LARE 15 B E TR
HERXZ 64,123
BEAFEFABRENS
Bt TAKREE
(W z5),/B518 (1,972,662)
EBRTEBESFRE
BB (k) 1,515,460
PTESRBMIT A
REHEIE 34,138
B & B AR 879,294
A B WA (1,941,948)
& B A (24,529)
HEEFEERS (978)
;é% W 1F R E 1B 490
BTEFERRBR
ﬂfﬁﬁéﬁ%g/ﬂﬁ
908,530
JE L2 5K T8 R 1B 7
FEFER 1,949
FECHQW\IE/WTE%1%Z
SN IE 8 2
BEZERITE S
WERESEFE (6,594)
B RORE R E
BRETEFH (337)
H b FE U FR 1B
ﬂ@%ﬁ%;@ﬁ (89)
= 17) (21 B 17 7% FE UL 3078
WEREEY L FE
4,254
RekBREEEBEYRE
}%ﬁ% LB 244
NTERREREBETE
a&%ﬁé 758
532,624

2018
—N\%F

HK$'000
TAT

983,272

36,541

74,768

1,041,106
(1,179,372)
9,703
713,754

(1,809,156)
(19,583)

265,870

(21,583)

21
(4,610)
324

85
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 38. A H LK B LXMW 52

(continued)

(a) Cash flows from operating activities (continued) (a) AOETE B E AR W B B
4GP

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZET—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA T
(Increase)/decrease in other assets H b & EE (38 hn),m (703) 7,643
Increase in financial assets at fair value & A F{EZTAEZFH
through profit or loss &Rl & E N (7,909,347) (14,251,548)
Decrease in derivative financial PTESBmITARD
instruments 13,273 19,824
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances # TEFERER KR BR
to customers (3 )/ (360,767) 3,094,939
Decrease/(increase) in accounts JE U ZIE R (B hn)
receivable 1,194,275 (978,259)
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from = [7) (2 B 195 = B U 5K 1B
reverse repurchase agreements B (1) 856,839 (1,595,802)
Increase in obligations under repurchase  [6] & 1 =5 &Y {& 18 1% hn
agreements 5,042,709 6,911,560
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BNRIE e REME
deposits and other receivables Y 38 R A (45 hn) 54,343 (208,964)
(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities AT EFAE RN SR
at fair value through profit or loss BECORD), /1 (3,083,417) 2,274,131
Decrease/(increase) in client trust bank BEEEBRITES
balances " (38 ) 3,169,046 (1,967,363)
Decrease in restricted cash = PR %11 £ w4 128,975 =
Increase in time deposits TE HA 13 2k 38 0 (92,483) (484)
Increase in bank deposits IR 17157 K18 10 (67,198) =
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable &< % 8 (Rl 4*) /18 41 (4,320,821) 1,931,591
Increase in other payables and accrued — EAEMNIBE R EFARE
liabilities 0 152 15,263
Cash used in operations KEEBHARE (4,842,500) (4,656,344)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBENEHR (55,905) (261,184)
Interest received 24 F B 1,921,008 1,698,988
Interest paid EERRAPSE (834,051) (665,035)
Dividend received B WK B 24,529 26,293
Net cash flows used in operating KEEHHA
activities ReREFHE (3,786,919) (3,857,282)
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

38. %%

(b)

EHERBEM @)

3 W) A Y R A
L

Bank Lease Debt securities
borrowings liabilities in issue
RITER HEEE CRTEXES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FAETL
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-\E—H—H 13,781,721 - 16,363,891
Changes from financing cash flows BEHR &K EE (4,344,427) = 10,829,808
Foreign exchange movement, net HNE B B ER 3,789 = (15,055)
Interest expense FEFX 293,763 = 202,479
Interest paid classified as NEAKERERENEN
operating cash flows & (294,414) = (183,916)
Changes in interest payable &S 7 8 & 651 = (18,563)
Unrealised gain on debt securities in = EXTEEEFATH W E
issue = = (1179,372)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\G+=A=+—H 9,441,083 = 25,999,272
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RoERMBHELERE6
TR 2 - 51,106 =
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—H—H 9,441,083 51,106 25,999,272
Changes from financing cash flows BEHREHEL 1,812,849 (23,895) 6,125,116
Foreign exchange movement, net NG B B ER (52,822) 10 (140,266)
Interest expense FMERX 319,163 1,862 240,618
Increase arising from acquisition of Y B-RHNBARMLEH
a subsidiary - 2,610 -
New leases HHEE = 17,078 =
Interest paid classified as operating A HEALEREREMNEN
cash flows il & (319,304) - (204,590)
Changes in interest payable e 7 B &% 141 = (36,028)
Unrealised loss on debt securities in + BEITEBEAAEHEIE
issue - - 1,515,460
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=+—8 11,201,110 48,771 33,499,582
(c) Major non-cash transactions ) FHEIEBHERS

RERN NEBRLYE K
EEXENHEZ SR
NEBREREFTREEE
N & & 517,078,000/ 7T
117,078,000 7T (20184 :
) o

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$17,078,000 and
HK$17,078,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
property, plant and equipment (2018: nil).
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39. Unconsolidated structured entity

39.

A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally
created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities.

Depending on the Group's power over the activities of the entity
and its exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it
may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have
an interest in such an entity but does not consolidate it. The Group
sponsors an entity when:

(i) It is the majority user of the entity;

(i)  Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products
issued by the entity;

(iii) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity's

performance; and

(iv) It led the formation of the entity.

Income from the sponsored structured entity and assets transferred

to the structured entity are as follows:

Assets securitisations

BEZESL

Interest

income
FEWA
HK$'000
TER

19,717

2019
—B-N0F
Commission

and fees
HeERER

HK$'000

TER
7,164

Assets
transferred
BEEEEE
HK$'000
THER
174,248

AR &R R W MR

EEEERBARERILIEATEE
FIENETEREZNER - &B 1
ERATAEHRE —KEMBA®E
AEMBEMR  EFELEE
)RR -

BIAEEHERETDNE N R
HXERNHOZERERAER
LERBOIHVENTE - HATBER
RAARK - EEMBERT
AREEDERIANERTHES
fﬁ'ﬁ?%%ﬁﬁék% T
JIBNBASEE —FERE:

M

’
il

|\ \
i

q

gy

e

T

(i) HAZEBNXEARHEES
=X BR BE WO 2 AR

(iv) HEBEKIZER

KEXEBOA
&% B3 ?’ ne

EEMEEENKA
EEEERBNEELT

2018
—N\F
Commission
and fees
Rek&M
HK$'000
THT

15,635

Assets
transferred
BEEEE
HK$'000
THT

597,963

INEE
income
FEW A
HK$'000
THT

4,053
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40. Fr e H N+

BRUAEMALTEENHEERSH
FAXNKEMOREIN - FA
IuGRESFHEEREMA(ZF
—NEF MBES - HFMFB
N EXHE37 - FREB=H
“EN\FZRIFEERED
HEEEMFIMFRBDOT:

40. Five highest paid individuals

Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees
during the year included two (2018: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 37 above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining three (2018: three) non-director and highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

2019 2018
—®-hE ZENF
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FER

Salaries and allowances Fre MoERL 9,114 8,286
Discretionary bonuses ) 15 TE 41 27,300 23,100
Employer's contribution to pension scheme & = [A] iR /R & 71 &) 4 5% 54 54
Sub-total NET 36,468 31,440
Share-based compensation reserve AR AERHERB

- Share option expense — BRER 528 556

- Share award expense - B EEER 9,643 10,958
Total it 46,639 42,954

The number of non-director of the Company and highest paid FARBEE MRASERS
employees of the Group whose emoluments fell within the following FHMEENABKEBS&EEN
bands is as follows: T:

AONRY) 2018

“E-hF

Number of
employees

EBEA"

—ZE-N\#F
Number of
employees

BEAH

& #HE
— 12,500,0017% 7T %13,000,0007% 7T = 1
13,500,001 7T £14,000,0007% 7T

Emolument bands
- HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000
- HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000

- HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000 — 14,000,001% 7T 214,500,000/ 7T 1 =
- HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 — 14,500,001% 7T 215,000,000/ 7T 1 =
- HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 — 16,000,001% 7T £ 16,500,000/ 7T - 1
- HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 — 17,000,001 7T 217,500,000 7T 1 =

3 3
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41. Related party transactions

(a)

Commission expenses to the
ultimate holding company

Commission expenses to the
ultimate holding company for
trading in RMB Qualified Foreign
Institutional Investors (RQFII)
account

Professional and consultancy fees
paid to fellow subsidiaries

Management fee income and
performance fee income of a
private fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and invested by a
fellow subsidiary

Commission income received from
the private fund mentioned in
note (iv)

Commission income of a public
fund managed by a fellow
subsidiary

Commission income from an
intermediate holding company

Commission income from the
ultimate holding company

Underwriting commission income
from the ultimate holding
company

In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year.

T F R AT
HeiX

MR ARESIEEIN
1% & & (RQFI)
BEERARSIMNF
el /N o
Heix
SHFREK BRI
BEELANE
BARNGZENE R A
EENMRZRKERF
WE R FLEE S U E
MERERANRKRE
Bl

EEEANEipus:EiN 2=
WA E KA

BRIRXME QR EER
REESWRNAE
YA
SEIPIE S FNCIE e
A2 A

B &R A& HE B A A R Y
AE WA

B &R AR ¥ B A 7 AR A
BHMAERA

41.

Notes
B =

(iv)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

B i 5 22

(@) BRREMBHRREXSITHIND
RBREHRI - KEBERE
NERB T ETATEAR

% o

2019
ZE-hEF

HK$'000
FERT

(978)

(53)

(30,373)

1,579

184

24
132

15,882

18,563

2018

—EF—-N\F

HK$'000
TAET

(1,644)

(352)

(27,017)

5148

177

41
1,073

23
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B Wik Oy A% 5 (am)

(@)  (continued) (@ #&)

41. Related party transactions (continued) 41.

Notes

P 5

2019
—E-NF

HK$'000
FER

2018

= —\F

HK$'000
TET

Management fee income from BARARIZENE AR

a public fund managed by a ERRFNERAE

wholly-owned subsidiary of the 2 E A %%iﬂﬂlﬁl

Company and controlled by the HEEERA

intermediate holding company (x) - 417
Management fee income and BAATIZEME AR

handling fee income from a BB KRR ZRKE AR

public fund managed by a KEHRHEE S WE

wholly-owned subsidiary of the WEBEERAR

Company and invested by a FEBWA

fellow subsidiary (xi) - 4,223
Commission income from a public B 2AZEE S WEMHMHE

fund A (xii) - 398
Commission income from a fellow & & &K B A 7 WELH

subsidiary <&k A (xiii) 283 1,066
Commission income and handling B3 —RZKER A

income from another fellow WEE A2 A K

subsidiary FEBRA (xiv) 271 64
Commission income from an BEEZERAAIEA

immediate holding company A& U A (xv) 5 610
Equity distribution on Perpetual XA TFARNMERDFD

Securities paid to the KEBEBFER DK

intermediate holding company (xvi) - (17,621)
Consultancy service fee and XA T REZERAA

corporate finance service fee KA R A A E’J

paid to the ultimate holding LRRBEBRMZE

company and intermediate B &R &

holding company (xvii) (28,821) (26,808)
Management fee income and BEARBI 2 ENERR

handling fee income from a EBERPNIERRAF

private fund managed by a I%UE’WA%%ﬁWE@Z

wholly-owned subsidiary of the WEEERA R

Company and controlled by an FEBWA

intermediate holding company (xviii) 1,166 800
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(vii)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated
in the Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value through
RQFII account as stated in the Cooperation Agreement signed with
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiaries
for the provision of capital market information were charged
at HK$30,373,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$27,017,000).

The management fee income and performance fee income received
from a private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5%
per annum of the net asset value at the last working day of each
month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset value for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The commission fees received from the private fund mentioned in
note (iv) above included commission income which was based on
0.15% (2018: 0.15%) of the transaction value.

The commission income received from the public fund managed by
the fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The commission income received from the intermediate holding
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

41.

B Wi 7 A% 5 (4)

(@ (&)

(if)

(iif)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

AT AR AR A R A 4
ERXTDRERREE—
REEWBRARRILNE
EBBINANRZEED
HEEH & -

AT AR AR A R A
ERXDRERREE—
REEWBRARRILNE
1 1 =% 51| BA A9 25 3B RQFI Bk
FRBEBDLFE -

HE-ZT-NAE+=A=
+— B Ik FE 3R R
BRAAREEARAMIEE
BHOEXERBAE N
30,373,000 ;L (=ZZ — N\
£ : 27,017,000/ 7T) °

BAABIZENBARE
BRAZHMERAKZED
AEESKIMHEREK
ARKRBRARBE=
T—AF+=-A=1+—8
LFESAZEB—EIE
HH & & FE ST 51.5% K
K & B 18 12 0 H920%
W& -

ENS AN
BB AEBEABER
2 5 E#0.15% (= F — )\
£ 1 0.15%) 5 H & 7 £ W
]\o

BERERAHEAREENA
BEESUBNBAEKR AR
EARB-—RE2AWER
A %5 37 MY A8 42 1 7 51 B Y
EERE -

B R A B B
SWRATIRERRA 2 &
MEB AR RILNELHHE
FIRMEBRE -
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(@)  (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(viii)  The commission income received from the ultimate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(ix) The underwriting commission income received from the ultimate
holding company was based on the underwriting agreement with the
ultimate holding company.

(x) The management fee income received from a public fund in 2018
was managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by the intermediate holding company. The management
fee income was based on a percentage prescribed in the respective
investment management agreements.

(xi) The management fee income and handling fee income received from
a public fund in 2018 was managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary and the intermediate
holding company. The management fee income and handling fee
income was based on the percentage prescribed in the investment
management agreement.

(xii)  The commission income received in 2018 from a public fund
mentioned in note (xi) above was based on the percentage stated
in the signed brokerage agreement with another wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

(xiii)  The commission income received from a fellow subsidiary was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(xiv)  The commission income and handling income received from
another fellow subsidiary were based on the pricing stated in the
signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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(a)

et (&)

(viii) B R 4% 1 B 2 B AR e 8
WA T IEEARRE —K
2EAMBARRILINEL
WAENBHEEBKE

(x) BRELEERAREDRHE

Be W ARERRKE

P A B %% 31RO B 3 1 o

(x) —E-N\FEARRAIEE
Bt BB A F) B R B R
BARZEHNAZEES IR
A E IR BN AR AR
BEBRHERTNAEI L
LB ©

x) ZT-N\FEARAZE
Bt B8 A 5] & 3R X fh R & B
B AR KRB N ERR AR
ENAEES MM ERE
B A RFEER A LA
AREEEHARENE
5 b ITER ©

xi) =T —/)\F A £ 3k =Ex)
Frit AEE S WRE M E S
WA T IREARRAF S —R
2EMBRAIF LML
e RIE O ER A € I

(xiii) B[R F B A ) WER & 8
WA T IREARRE —K
2EAMBARRILINEL
WENBHEEBKE

(xiv)] BZ—RZEHBE QR UE
WASBRARFEBRA
DIREERARA —REEW
BB YA &L HET
HHEBKE -
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The commission income received from an immediate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with an immediate holding company of the Company.

The equity distribution on Perpetual Securities paid to the
intermediate holding company was based on the initial distribution
rate stated in the subscription agreement with the Company.

The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee
paid to the ultimate holding company and intermediate holding
company were based on the pricing stated in consultancy services
and corporate finance services agreements with wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

The management fee and handling income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by an intermediate holding company were based on the
percentage prescribed in the investment management agreement for
the year ended 2019.

Included in the Group's accounts payable was a broker payable
due to the ultimate holding company of HK$18,504,000 (2018:
HK$6,383,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2019. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the
settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable was a broker receivable
due from the ultimate holding company of HK38,658,000 (2018:
HK$17,644,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2019. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

41.

B Wi 7 A% 5 (4)

(a)

3 :

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(%)

BB Z AR A R YE
B WA TR EBARRE H &
YRR B2 S R AT e
FIRMEBRE -

AT A R AR A R H oK
BEZEZDIKEZERR
B ET 32 EY 38 B8 15 = 51 B A9
D IEKED K °

ST HERAERAREP
NERARNEARSE &
REZEBEREEZER
REZEAME AR EH
AR K 1 2K B B AR5 5 8
P %1 € {8 R °

BARBZEAMBEARE
SR 2 NIRRT
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(xxiv)

Included in the Group's prepayment, deposits and other receivable of
HK$50,443,000 (2018: HK$13,763,000) was an advance prepayment to
the fellow subsidiary for professional and consultancy fee mentioned
in the note (iii).

Included in the accounts receivable were management fee and
performance fee receivables due from an investment fund managed
by the Group mentioned above of HK$150,000 (2018: HK$649,000)
arising from the provision of asset management services as at 31
December 2019 mentioned in notes (iv) and (xviii). The balances were
unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

Included in the Group's accounts payable were amounts due to
the intermediate holding company of nil (2018: HK$11,371,000),
the ultimate holding company of HK$5,212,000 (2018: HK$79,000),
the fellow subsidiary of HK$57,419,000 (2018: HK$56,300,000) and
another fellow subsidiary of HK$38,702,000 (2018: HK$15,930,000)
arising from dealing in securities, futures and foreign exchange as at
31 December 2019. The balances were unsecured, interest-free and
payable on demand.

Included in the Group's accounts payable were the accounts
payable to the ultimate holding company mentioned in note (xvii)
for the consulting service fee and corporate finance service fee of
HK$11,055,000 (2018: HK$5,000,000) as at 31 December 2019.
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

The Group's ultimate holding company, GJSCL, is subject to
the control of the PRC Government which also controls a
significant portion of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively
referred to as "state-owned enterprises”). Therefore, transactions
with state-owned enterprises are regarded as related party
transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group
were entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the
Group enters into transactions with state-owned enterprises that
relate to the Group's normal business activities, including but
not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance business,
asset management business, loan and financing business
and investment holding and market making business. These
transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of business
at an arm's length and under the normal commercial terms and
conditions as to those that would have been entered into with
non-state-owned enterprises, which were not considered as
individually significant in accordance with HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii), (iii),
(vi), (vii), (viii), (ix), (xiii), (xv) and (xvii) also constitute continuing
connected transactions to be disclosed in the annual report as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of
the Group are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.
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42.

Financial risk management

The Group's activities mainly expose to such financial risks as credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
framework focuses on the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable consequence of being
in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate
balance between risk and return and minimise any potential adverse
effect on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the board of
directors and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information.
The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk
management. The Group reqularly reviews its risk management policies
to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The main financial risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing
each of these risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and
client trust bank balances which are included in the Group's asset
portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The board of directors delegates to the credit committee and risk
management committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of
the Group. Members of the credit committee and risk management
committee include, inter alia, the chief executive officer, responsible
officers, the chief financial officer and the head of related control
departments. The credit committee is responsible for the development
of financing business and approval of major credit exposure and the
risk management committee to provide independent supervision of all
credit risk metrics and limits.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited | 2019 Annual Report

42.

4B 0 L B 4 B

AEENEHIZHEXFTT A
R EERR  mHRRNR
HESRER - $%E%%@ﬁ%
BREREFRON - fFE - EX
REEZEREHBEFT T #
ZHER - At AKRENER
REE T EE R R R I
BAKEMERRBENEMND
REEREKREK -

AEENREBREERRAESS
#fE - EEBER oM LA R -
**m B R B PR BB I 22 Il Ko B2

Rk RE A ERTENER
Mﬁ#@%°%$§%¥ﬁﬂﬁ
ERGEE@RA - AEEEH
T AT E R B B R R u&%ﬁ
5 NP AL o] &

$%lﬁﬂlﬁ?$migﬁﬁ

Rk AEER - T35 R B K
Eéiﬂh°aﬁxﬁﬂ 2 B I
HBHIENT

fi 8 L B
FERREIBREASEEEA
/\EPE’J%’\%E)EE’JT KRB
FEWRIE - BFE S - |RITER
&%}Eféﬁﬁiﬁm 1

15 /5 /2 2 IR AE 12 %/&%fqﬂlﬂ?
EFEeRREEREER
@éi?%%ﬁﬁlﬁfﬂ&
EEZEekRREELZES
?ﬁH¢@%§l&mﬁ B8
BRI AEE AR R
F'EJ?E”q EFEEZECRARERSD
BMEBRHETZEERRERA
RERZESBYEEMAEREE
B2 BN REE -

° ]]U

=



Notes to Financial Statements

S 5 R o B ik

31 December 2019
—ET-hF+ZA=+—H

42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4l R b AR B o)
Credit risk (continued) o B R B (2)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued) 15 /5 /3 Bz IR 58 12 #I R 4% FE B &
(&)

The risk management department and equity finance department are
responsible for approval, monitoring and review of the Group's credit
risk of margin clients. It is also responsible for making settlement calls
when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits. Failure
to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client's position.
The credit limit and margin limit for each client and the lending ratio
of securities acceptable as margin collateral prepared by the equity
financing department and approved by risk management department,
the significant transaction will be approved by the credit committee.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain
an element of credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure
by performing a detailed credit analysis, and dedicated professionals
are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance. These key
investment decisions are also subject to approval by the credit
committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription
of new shares are normally settled within 1 week from the drawdown
date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail
to settle their shortfall within a specific period of tolerance after the
IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and
Moody's ratings or their equivalents are used by the risk management
department for managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by
the Group's own assessment through the use of internal rating tools.

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable and large
commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held
in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised financial
institutions. The credit risk of bank balances and client trust bank
balances is considered to be manageable.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-
against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for
credit limits must be reviewed by the credit manager and approved
by risk management department or the credit committee. The risk
management department and equity financing department determines
whether a forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients
with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The credit committee
regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking.
No unauthorised transaction is allowed to be executed if the current
position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit
placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely
monitored by both the dealers and the risk management department.
Margin calls will be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures,
options and leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business if there is
a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer's
position will be executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.

With the above stated controls, management considers that the
credit risk of the Group resulting from securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as margin and
other loan financing is manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit risk
of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered to be
manageable.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds arising from corporate finance, asset management
and investment holding and market making businesses are manageable
as the credit rating and reputation of trade counterparties are sound.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses is considered to be minimal.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9, where the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss model. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure expected credit losses ("ECL")
on accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment funds and
others; and general approach to measure ECL on loans and advances
to customers, time deposits and other financial assets accounted for
at amortised cost as well as loan commitments. Under the simplified
approach, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial assets migrate
through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk
since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL
— not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group's historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The loan and advances use the
number of days past due (“DPD") and loan-to-collateral value ("LTV")
to determine significant increase in credit risk. For non-standard
financing, internally derived credit ratings have been identified as
representing the best available determinant of credit risk. Credit risk
is deemed to have increased significantly if the credit rating has
significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative to the credit
rating at the date of initial recognition.

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based on
DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, loans and advances to
customers are classified into 3 stages.

ECL for retail margin loan under stage 1 is calculated on collective
basis. The probabilities of price changes of various scenarios are
calculated based on the observed historical price movements of the
underlying collateral stocks. The ECL of each scenario is then calculated
in accordance with the respective loan exposure. When the retail
margin loan classified under stage 2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is
calculated.

The ECL of non-standard financing is calculated on an individual basis.
The Group has pre-defined loss rate of each loan's category. The
loss rates are referenced to the default rate for performing and non-
performing grades from external rating agencies. As at 31 December
2019, the average loss rate for 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL was
0.06% (2018: 0.11%) and 71.32% (2018: 48.66%) respectively.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (continued)

Calculation of expected credit losses (continued)

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery of
the loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be classified
into stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the Group may further
calculate the ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure
the expected credit loss. Each scenario is associated with different
exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers, the
Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple
probability-weighted scenarios by the stock market analysis.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the
reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of
financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2019 and 2018, without taking
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(a)

Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances
is insignificant.

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from
clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals
who are mainly located in China. The equity financing
department and risk management department daily prepares an
analysis of key margin client and futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive
concentration of risk. As the Group trades with a large number
of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the
concentration of risk of loans and advances to customers and
accounts receivable from clients is manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing
houses and others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers from its securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as other
receivables from asset management, corporate finance and
investment holding and market making businesses. Responsible
officers timely monitor excess deposits placed with dealers and
brokers to ensure the concentration of risk of accounts receivable
is manageable.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4l R b AR B o)
Credit risk (continued) o B R B (2)
Securities borrowing and lending ErBE

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter
into securities borrowing and lending arrangements with financial
institutions and the Group's customers. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group borrowed equity securities of HK$68,480,000 (2018:
HK$125,785,000) from financial institutions and set aside equity
securities of HK$430,937,000 (2018: HK$549,155,000) pledged by
margin clients, for such lending arrangements to customers. Cash
collateral of HK$519,380,000 (2018: HK$730,926,000) was received
from the customers while HK$72,889,000 (2018: HK$129,116,000) was
placed to the financial institutions as at 31 December 2019.

The Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing
and lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk.
However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the
cash collateral received and cash collateral placed are included in the
accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers,
respectively. The Group is principally liable for repaying the borrowed
securities in case of any default by the customers.

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly arise from
open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of
which are exposed to general and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to
interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group has established policies
and procedures for monitoring and controlling the market risk arising
from these financial instruments.
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42.

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers,
accounts receivable, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, accounts payable to clients, bank borrowings, debt
securities in issue, receivable from reverse repurchase agreements,
obligations under repurchase agreements, client trust bank balances
and cash and bank balances. Debt investments usually bear a fixed
rate interest and they are managed through the strategy of trading
them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at
variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other
financial assets and liabilities which are mainly carried at amortised
cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed interest-bearing with
short term maturities within one year, of which the interest rate risk is
also considered to be minimal. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk
by monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the interest
rates offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income. The Group regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a
possible interest rate shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin
loans receivable, debt securities investment and interest-bearing bank
deposits.

The following table illustrates the potential impact, of a parallel upward
or downward shift of 100 basis points in interest rate curves with
all other variables held constant on the Group's net profit for the
next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group's
positions of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities and debt
securities investments at year end.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 4 il JEL e 45 B o)
Market risk (continued) i 5 R B (&)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis Tl 3 5 /7% J& 7247

Interest rate increase 100 basis points

EREERFEARE

Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

MR EE EFH1005 F

Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax
BR B AT R A0 Ok 2)
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#E T FHE T

liabilities (38,367) 44,912
Fixed income securities investment BlEWz=EHIEE (261,812) (140,255)
Net Amount R (300,179) (95,343)

The estimated 1% increase or decrease in interest rate represents
management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as debt securities in issue for sales to
customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk has been
transferred to customers accordingly.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity
derivative instruments and fund investments held by the Group which
are classified in the statement of financial position as financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk is the risk
of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations,
whether such a change in price is caused by factors specific to the
individual instrument or factors affecting all instruments traded in
the markets. The Group mitigates its price risk by performing detailed
due diligence analysis of investments and dedicated professionals are
assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of investments.
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
assumption that the price of all the investment of equity instruments
and funds move according to the historical correlation with the Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index and other relevant indexes. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the equity index had changed by 10% with all
other variable held constant, it represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in equity index.

Price sensitivity analysis

42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4R B P o)
Market risk (continued) i 5 R B (&)
Price risk (continued) 1B 18 )7 Bz ()

ATHERE MR FTA
BEMRESRENERRER
FREERBNREMARERZ
BEREEHMETE - TN
R &R A 3= 15 2 & 81000 M H 4t &
BT 2 ERREEBYHK
EHREBAEAREPNNMG -

1B 15 3 B Z T

2019 2018

—B-hF —EF-N\E

HK$'000 HK$'000

Changes in relevant indexes HEEHEY THET FHET
Increase 10% _FFF10% 86,764 69,557
Decrease 10% T F£10% (86,764) (69,557)

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as equity derivative products in issue for
sales to customers and for hedging purpose. They are not subject to
significant risk as the risk has been either transferred to customers or
properly hedged and mitigated accordingly.

Besides, the asset quality of the margin clients' margin collateral will
deteriorate when the market comes down drastically, scenario analysis
and stress testing are reqularly performed on an individual client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign
currency exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and
its cash flows.

The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged
foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as the Group's
transactions which are denominated in currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollars.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4l R b AR B o)
Market risk (continued) i 5 & B 42)
Foreign currency risk (continued) ShPE B B (42)

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group
hedges the majority of the client positions through back-to-back
transactions with external counterparties. As the Group adopts a
stringent control over its positions, it is considered that foreign
exchange risk exposure is manageable.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars ("US$") and Renminbi ("RMB"). The
Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange risk because HK$
is pegged with US$. The Group also conducts appropriate hedging
activities when it is exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other
foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal to its total assets and
liabilities. The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored
by the Treasury and Finance Department. As a result, it is considered
that foreign exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash,
the availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying business, the treasury department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available committed
credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by treasury department to
ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the
liquidity position of the individual companies within the Group on a
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet
all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such
as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4R B P o)
Liquidity risk (continued) B & 4 R B 2)
The following tables summarise the maturity profile of the Group's BEGHALRWERBESRE T
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash R AEESREENE BB
flows: M
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hhFE+=ZA=+—H

Up to 1to 3 to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total

-fBAR —-Z=@A =ZE+=fA —£1% st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

Liabilities af
Accounts payable B R 14,587,372 - - - 14,587,372
Interest bearing borrowings st EfE R 9,257,999 942,296 1,035,534 24,804 11,260,633
Debt securities in issue BETEBRES 22,772,919 768,727 2,318,374 7,710,607 33,570,627
Financial liabilities at fair value  #Z A FEFAB R

through profit or loss 2RBE 6,810,580 - - - 6,810,580
Obligations under repurchase 2188 1% 3 &) & 18

agreements 14,730,933 3,117,760 403,931 - 18,252,624

68,159,803 4,828,783 3,757,839 7735411 84,481,836

Off-balance sheet items EESERINER

Underwriting obligations ARG 6,075 - - - 6,075

Financial obligations to ERREMBKEL
loan facilities - - - - -
Capital commitments BARE 6,180 - - - 6,180
12,255 - - - 12,255

S

S =3
k> & HF

o
H &
Jm Yy S
|
i

Derivative cash flows

Derivative financial
instruments settled
on a gross basis

T k>
=

Total inflows BRA 2,004,907 837,896 5,970,010 2,373,481 11,186,294
Total outflows @ (1,988,973) (850,522)  (6,208,759)  (2,460,907)  (11,509,161)
15,934 (12,626) (238,749) (87,426) (322,867)
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4l R b AR B o)
Liquidity risk (continued) i B & 4 B o)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-NF+=-A=+-—H
Up to
1 month 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years
—@AR —-Z==@A ==+=f@A —ERF &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
THET THET THET THET THET
Liabilities g%
Accounts payable JE 3B 18,883,841 - - = 18,883,841
Interest bearing borrowings REN 9,466,415 = = = 9,466,415
Debt securities in issue BETEBRES 18,988,388 860,471 1,344,577 4841178 26,034,614
Financial liabilities at fair value  ZATFEALBED
through profit or loss tRBRE 8,731,117 - - - 8,731,117
Obligations under repurchase [ 5 % K EE
agreements 11,803,449 1,385,468 - - 13,188,917

67,873,210 2,245,939 1,344,577 4,841,178 76,304,904

Off-balance sheet items EEBERIER

Underwriting obligations HHH EGE 451,204 - = = 451,204
Financial obligations to ENRENBER
loan facilities 53,295 - - - 53,295
Capital commitments B AR HIE 9,575 = = = 9,575
514,074 - - - 514,074
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial BRBEENTE
instruments settled SRIA
on a gross basis
Total inflows FED TN 2,194,764 572,579 2,958,804 16,350 5,742,497
Total outflows Frntun (2,194.716) (601,816) (2,924,846) (16,400) (5,737.778)
48 (29,237) 33,958 (50) 4719
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value were not
materially different from their carrying amount due to their short term
nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group's valuation process

The fair values of financial assets in Level 1 and Level 2 are measured
by reference to quoted market prices and brokers' quotes, respectively.
The Group has engaged an independent professionally qualified valuer,
International Valuation Limited, to perform the valuation of financial
instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting purposes. These valuation
reports are sent to the finance department and the Audit Committee
for discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the
Group's reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes in
fair values of financial assets in Levels 2 and 3 are analysed at each
reporting date.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

Non-current
Financial assets held for trading and
investments

*RE
RERERRAGHEE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

()]
B
mHEE
(FE147)
HK$'000
TER

42.

4 it B A P o)

b E R AR A PE )

WA FES BB IAE)
ATV EERE

TEMPAEEERIANAT
EHESH:

BAFEFENEE:

R-Z-NHF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RAUTRENATEE

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
BAA
BE2Y
(%24R)
HK$'000
THT

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BEARERL
BE2Y
(%#34%)
HK$'000
TER

Total

At
HK$'000
TERT

— Unlisted fixed income securities - FIMEATEREZES - 1,594,507 - 1,594,507
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABENER
profit or loss BE
— Financial products - 2REM 367,710 1,117,294 4,782,781 6,267,785
367,710 2,711,801 4,782,781 7,862,292
Current &
Financial assets held for trading and ~H{EEERBRESRHEE
investments
— Listed equity securities - ETRAZESH 710,798 - - 710,798
— Listed fixed income securities - I EEREE S — 14,065,739 — 14,065,739
— Unlisted fixed income securities - FEMEEREEH — 2,493,982 — 2,493,982
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABZENL &
profit or loss BE
— Listed fund investments - fmESKE 2,783 - - 2,783
— Unlisted fund investments - FEMESEE - 1,758,316 - 1,758,316
— Unlisted convertible promissory - ErmAa R ER
note 25 - - 4,298 4,298
— Qther financial instruments - HttgmIA - 250,731 - 250,731
— Financial products - REmM 4,339,137 25,181,242 2,321,880 31,842,259
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA - 155,652 - 155,652
5,052,718 43,905,662 2,326,178 51,284,558
5,420,428 46,617,463 7108,959 59,146,850
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4R B P o)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SREEKAFENAFEHE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGTEN2H T AGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EFERE)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BAFEAENEE: (&)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RANTEENATETE

Quoted
prices in Significant  Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i BB B AR

mERE BE2E '
(B18) (F24) st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT THT FHT
Non-current ¥R E
Financial assets at fair value through EZATFEFABZNE 5
profit or loss BE
— Financial products - 2REM - 1,048,926 3,284,311 4,333,237
Current B
Financial assets held for trading and H{EEBERKRELRMEE
investments
— Listed equity securities - FTRAES 521,238 = = 521,238
— Listed fixed income securities - FEFERZEES = 13,319,376 = 13,319,376
— Unlisted fixed income securities - EEME TR EEH = 473,057 = 473,057
Financial assets at fair value through ZAFEFABZENE &
profit or loss BE
— Listed fund investments - fmESKRE 2,753 = = 2,753
— Unlisted fund investments - FEMELKRE = 447903 = 447903
— Unlisted convertible promissory - FEmABRER
note 28 - - 23,847 23,847
— Other financial instruments - HEthémI A = 231,247 = 231,247
— Financial products - 2REM 2,836,277 20,738,164 4934370 28,508,811
Derivative financial instruments TEemMIA = 76,832 = 76,832

3,360,268 35,286,579 4,958,217 43,605,064

3,360,268 36,335,505 8,242,528 47,938,301
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4l R b AR B o)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SahgE AAENA FEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) ffz” N FEFGFENZH T AGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEESERE)
Liabilities measured at fair value: EAVETENEE:

As at 31 December 2019

Non-current
Debt securities in issue designated at

#»’.‘uﬁl
ERAFEFARTH

miERE

R-ZE-NF+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
BRAUTEEMNATLETE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

Significant  Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(EW))] (Level 3)
BERERL
B5E2Y
(%34%) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT

(Level 1)
T BB EAT

BREZH
(B28)
HK$'000
TER

(B14)
HK$'000
TR

fair value through profit and loss E%*m B &5 - (1,009,692) (5114,328) (6,124,020)
Current &
Debt securities in issue designated at #b*?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkiﬁéﬁ’ﬂ

fair value through profit and loss BERTERKE — (18,369,478) (2,321,880) (20,691,358)
Financial liabilities held for trading BIEEE2RAR

— Listed equity securities - FTRAES (20,472) - - (20,472)

— Listed fixed income securities - EEEREE S - (2,200,728) - (2,200,729)
Financial liabilities designated at fair BT AZ A FEFAER

value through profit or loss MeRaR

— Financial products - eBEM - (403,810 — (403,810

— Other financial instruments - Hige@mIT A - (55,386) - (55,386)

— Third-party interest in - MAEHREESH

consolidated investment funds B R - (430,184) - (430,184)

Derivative financial instruments TEE@MITA - (149,851) - (149,851

)
(2,321,880) (27,651,789)
)

(20,472) (26,319,129) (7.436,208) (33,775,809
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4 b R B B o)

B R AR A P E ()
BAFEGFEN B TAE
REEERE)
BAVEFENEE: (&)

42. Financial risk management (continued) 42.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE-NF+=ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RANTEEOATEE

288

Quoted
prices in Significant  Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
2 BEREE
% W (B 2 BR2
(B18) ( (83#) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Non-current ¥R E
Debt securities in issue designated at B ERAFEFABER
fair value through profit and loss BETREBES - (1070379)  (3770,799)  (4,841,178)
Current )
Debt securities in issue designated at B ERAFEFABER
fair value through profit and loss BRETERKES - (9,574,005)  (4,862,830)  (14,436,835)
Financial liabilities held for trading RIEEESRARE
— Listed equity securities - FTRAES (41,913) = = (41,913)
— Listed fixed income securities - FEFERZEES = (3,334,378) = (3,334,378)
Financial liabilities designated at fair BT AZ A FEFAER
value through profit or loss HERAs
— Financial products - 2REM - (5004,994) (32,095 (5,037,089)
— Third-party interest in -MABHREEEH
consolidated investment funds FEoFER = (317,737) = (317.737)
Derivative financial instruments MTE£MT A = (23,620) = (23,620)
(41913) (18,254734)  (4,894,925)  (23191572)
(41,913)  (19,325,113) (8,665,724)  (28,032,750)
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, or broker and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market prices
used for financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
Group are the current bid price and the current ask price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter) are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments
are observable, the financial instruments are included in Level
2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.

42. 4R R bR E B o)

b E R AR A PE )
BRFEFENTHTAE
REEERE)

(a)

FIRe@mITAE
RRIGERMEEER TR
TEARAFERBERSEHRLN
MBMETE - RIKTEER
MZEAEIRTEBRRS
Fr~ X5 KLEBERE
s MZERERKE
REREETHERRER
MERS - AEBMIFESRE
EERSRIBEFANTS
HREAERMNEREBLER
{g o

o eI A

I FE FAE BB 1 35 (1 40 45 Sk
mZEENEMITAQF
ENFERAGERNEE - %
EHERMETRFEATS
EMGHE(WE) BET
KEERBMNSEME - &
BTEAMEMANAEEAXR
SN ABR2Y  %Ze
BTASAF2E -

B —E=% EEKXNSH
I IELAR] B R T 5 IR A
HEE . ZEB T AN AZES
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, %l B A B o)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) SRl E R AENA P EE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGTEN2H T AGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 () ZE3erIE
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial TREINBHZE_Z-NFR
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. —E2-N\F+=ZA=+—H
IEFE F3hEHITAEDN
Level 3 financial assets FIR @ EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hAF+=H=+
—RIEE
Unlisted
convertible
promissory Financial
note product Total
Ik E AR R
AR ERE SEER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T F#& T F#& T
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF
—HA—H 23,847 8,218,681 8,242,528
Purchases EE - 1,199,111 1,199,111
Disposals k= (294,000) (294,000)
Receipt on maturity FI| BB B U B (19,579) - (19,579)
Transfer out to level 1 EE 1R - (38.268) (38,268)
Accrued interest income FEEF B A 53 - 53
Net loss recognised in profit  REZAEREK
or loss 518 )5 58 (23) (1,980,863) (1,980,886)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—N&F
+ZA=+—8 4,298 7,104,661 7,108,959
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Level 3 financial assets (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decembe

r 2018

42. 4 bRl BE S B o)
SHEERABENATFEE)
HERFEGTENZH TAE)
NEBEZERE)

(0 HE3REWMTAME)
FIR T EEE)
BE-ZEZ—-NE+=A=+
—BILEE

Unlisted
convertible

promissory
note

FE ET AT R
LR E
HK$'000

Financial
product

TR Em
HK$'000

Total

it
HK$'000

TET TET TET

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF
—H—H — 1,619,111 1,619,111
Purchases BB 39,105 5,652,836 5,691,941
Receipt on maturity FI| B B 45 BY (19,555) (58,665) (78,220)
Net gain recognised in profit R IEz A ER K
or loss I &= 5 R 4,297 1,005,399 1,009,696
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+—HA=+—H 23,847 8,218,681 8,242,528
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, 4R B P o)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) Sang e AAENA FEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGTEN2H T AGE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (0 ZHE3emIAE)
Level 3 financial liabilities FHIRL A E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hAF+=H=+
—RILFE
Financial securities
product in issue Total
BT
LRER B HF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T F & T FE T
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF
—H—H 32,095 8,633,629 8,665,724
Issuance 1T - 4,286,560 4,286,560
Redemption on maturity A B 5 i BB o) (32,095) (3,449,821) (3,481,916)
Transfer out to level 1 EEEIR - (38.060) (38,060)
Net gain recognised in profit ~ RIBZEER MU
or loss ) - (1,996,100) (1,996,100)
At 31 December 2019 R-_EB-NF
+=A=+—H — 7,436,208 7,436,208
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-N\F+=A=+

—BLEE

Financial Debt securities

product in issue Total
B & 1T
& @l E m B 7% & & st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHT FHE T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F
—H—H - 2,211,321 2,211,321
[ssuance BIT7 78,210 5,428,594 5,506,804
Redemption on maturity A B Hf B BB o) (58,665) = (58,665)
Net loss recognised in profit — RIBzE MR E 8
or loss F 12,550 993,714 1,006,264
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=-—HA=+—H 32,095 8,633,629 8,665,724
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2019 and

2018:

31 December 2019

Financial products

THER

Financial products
THEM

An unlisted convertible
promissory note

FEMARBALRE

Debt securities in issue

Debt securities in issue

BETEBES

Valuation
technique

fEE M
Market approach

[k

Net asset value

REFE

Discount cash flows

RRRERE

Market approach

455k

Net asset value

EERE

Significant
unobservable input

EXBEEESH

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project

Company:
AREEEE QR R
EENOMSIELBAT
MEBBH:
— Price to earnings multiple
- maX
N/A
TER

Discount rate

BRR %

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project
Company:

RRETREA Eﬁh%
fﬁmm%Tﬁﬁf
MEBRBE:

— Price to earnings multiple
- A%

N/A
TEH

42.

4 it B A P o)

b E R AR A PE )
EQ?E#EWEMI%E)

AFEE

(c)

Average

74

78
N/A
i@ A

12%

7.8

N/A
NEm

T (E)
%3ﬁiﬂmlﬁ(ﬁ)
TXYXABERIAN-ZZ—A
FRZFT-N\F+= HE+
—BEENERELIERS
HE

—E-hAHF+ZA=+-—H

Sensitivity of the
fair value to the input

DYEHZENBBE

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$70 million or decreased by
HK$70 million, respectively.

HEARE LA EI0% - AF
B2 REM70E BB TR
LPIBEAT -

N/A
NEm

10% increase or decrease in
the discount rate, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$33,000 or decreased by
HK$33,000, respectively.

AR B R 4100 0 AF
B15E 5 F3 33,0007 7T 3%
8 33,0005 7T

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$70 million or decreased by
HK$70 million, respectively.

HERE L AREEI0%  AF
B REM70E BB TIR
DIBEET °

NEm
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42. &b R B P o)

B R AR A P E ()

42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) R FEFGTEN ST AE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEBELRE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) () EZE3erITAEGE)

31 December 2018 —E-N\E+=-A=+—H
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Financial products

TBEM

Valuation

technique

EERM
Market approach

iRz

Significant
unobservable input

EXBEERSY

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project
Company:

AREEEB AR E
EENTHIELRRA
MEBRE:

Average

Sensitivity of the
fair value to the input
AFEHZENHRE

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$22 million or decreased by
HK$22 million, respectively.

HEEARE LA KEEI0% - AF
BEDRIEM2E & TN
LRREET -

74

— Price to book multiple 1.2
- %
— Price to earnings multiple 9.4
-max
Financial products Recent transaction N/A N/A - NJA
price
THEM THRHER NEm @R TER
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A - N/A
tREm BERE TER NER  TEH
Financial products and  Discount cash flows  Discount rate 11%  10% increase or decrease in the

unlisted convertible
promissory note

EREMRFLDAH

BAEEZEE

ERALRE

B 37 5

discount rate, the fair value
would be increased by HK$1.6
million or decreased by HK$1.6
million, respectively.
ERRR R MR 100 - AF
EREHREMEBERT
FHD6E BB o
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)
31 December 2018 (continued)

Debt securities in issue

Debt securities in issue

BERTEBES

Debt securities in issue

ERTEHES

Debt securities in issue

BRTEKES

Valuation

technique

fEERM
Market approach

5%

Recent transaction
price
TR 5 ER

Net asset value

BEEFE

Discount cash flows

HRRERE

Significant
unobservable input

EXBEERSY

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used
to determine the estimated
equity value of the Project
Company:

RARETRB QA RE
BENTSIELRAT
MEBRE:

— Price to book multiple
- mERXE

— Price to earnings multiple
- hME%

42.

Average

4 it B A P o)

EHEE R AR AFEE)

A FEGTEN 2 E TAE)

NEESERE)

(0 ZH3maemIAE)
—E2-N\E+=A=+-—H
(&)

Sensitivity of the
fair value to the input

AYEHZENBBE

10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$22 million or decreased by
HK$22 million, respectively.

BB E LTS E10% - AF
EBAREM2EBE TR
PRBRBHET -

74

1.2

9.4

N/A - NJA
r@Em TER

N/A - N/A
TEm TEH

N/A~ 10% increase or decrease in the
discount rate, the fair value
would be increased by HK$1.0
million or decreased by HK$1.0
million, respectively.

ERR R MR 100 - AF
EHEHRIEMOREET
IR PI0BEBTT o
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42.

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader
concept than the "equity” on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

° to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its
subsidiaries which are licensed corporations;

° to safeqguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

. to support the Group's stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary's management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
timely basis. The SFC requires each licensed corporation to maintain
a level of required liquid capital which is the higher of the floor
requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of
the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients' margin. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their required liquid
capital during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

A subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain a
minimum net asset value of HK$0.1 million at all times. A subsidiary
of the Company is a Registered Fund Management Company registered
with the Monetary Authority of Singapore and is required to maintain a
minimum base capital requirement of SG$250,000 at all times. Another
subsidiary of the Company registered with Monetary Authority of
Singapore for dealing in capital market products is required to maintain
a minimum total operational risk requirement of SG$50,000.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.
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43. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and
trade payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis as
accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock Exchange.
The net amount of CNS money obligations receivable or payable with
HKSCC and the guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do not meet the
criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and the Group does
not intend to settle the balances on a net basis.

amount of
recognised

43, K < i 2 B4 AR

AEEBRIBEBBIEATAITEF
BEHEEEAENRFEFTRARIK
(BEFERIBRBRKERERI S E
MRIE - YRR FEEEERE
WHENBMXMERGEE - BF
BEENTE TR R RR
BNENFERTFRREEESE
MRBESI T ARMBEHRER
MR SH AR 2 - AN E A HR0%
RMEEEEABEHER -

Related

Gross financial Net amounts amounts

amount of

recognised liabilities
financial offset in

(assets)/ of financial not set

liabilities  off in the
reflected in  statement

assets/ the financial the financial of financial

(liabilities)  statements

statements position

REEHE
EREASH BRALE REBRX HRREH
EE/ (BE)/ 2iMem MAREH
(BE)AE EGfEAE S6FE WEHLE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL THEL
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-h#F
+=A=+-8
CNS money obligation receivable FEFERIMEY R 1,798,962  (1,795,201) 3,761 - 3,761
CNS money obligation payable FEFERNERE (1,795,201) 1,795,201 - - -
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\§
t=A=+-H
CNS money obligation receivable TEFEIMEY R 609,368 280,705 = 280,705

CNS money obligation payable BEZRIWENR (328,663)

The "net amounts of financial liabilities reflected in the financial
statements”, as set out above, is included in "accounts receivable and
accounts payable arising from brokerage — the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses" in notes 18 and 24 to the financial statements,
respectively.

E X EH AR SRR R A
CREEFEIDAEEEME
MR T 18R [ AL EERE
WA R AR08 - R AT R HE
hAEERT -
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44. Business combination 44.

The Company acquired 50.97% equity interests in Vietnam Investment
Securities Company ("IVS") through subscribing 35,350,000 new
shares of IVS. The share subscription was in the form of cash of
HK$128,975,000. IVS is listed in the Hanoi Stock Exchange in Vietnam
and is engaged in securities dealing and broking and margin financing
business. The acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand its business in Southeast Asia.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$2,758,000 in relation
to this acquisition. The transaction costs have been expensed and
included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of IVS as at the date
of acquisition were as follows:

E ¥ ki

KN A % 18 PR 85 35,350,000%
R EE FH D 2R (IVS)) 378
15 - U B8 5% A &) #950.97% A% A< 4
o RORBUBRSENET
% 58 £128,975,00078 7T IVSH
BMANEAFR G LT EF
R RERHAERBMEZES -
ZWEEEAAEBR TR ERRS
DEFRREE —E D o

AEBRZWBEEBEEEIIK
7K2,758,0008 T ° KR P AE X
o WAt AGABZRBHEM

MU BEEBEER @ IVSHE B RIE
ENBENRFEET:

HK$'000
TAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 4,174
Statutory deposits VR TE 173X 2,292
Loans and advances to customers BTITRFHEREBR 49,354
Accounts receivable JE U 3R IR 22
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEMRIE e M EMaEW A 1,640
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BEAFEFABGRNEMEE 3,318
Restricted cash X R IR & 128,975
Client trust bank balances EPEETRITEH 24,449
Cash and bank balances B e &IRTT & 6 27172
Accounts payable &1~ 5 A (24,352)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HtEMNRBEREFER (1,576)
Interest bearing borrowings FFRER (2,610)
Total net identifiable assets at fair value AR EFERAR #BFE E B 212,858
Non-controlling interests IE 1 AR 4 2 (104,356)

108,502
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEIEEENHE 20,473
Consideration paid in cash IR & SR E 128,975
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44. Business combination (continued)

The fair value of the loan and advance to customers as at the date
of acquisition amounted to HK$49,354,000. The gross contractual
amount of loan and advance to customers was HK$49,379,000, of
which HK$25,000 ECL was provided.

The fair value of non-controlling interest in IVS as at the date
of acquisition was estimated as the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the IVS's net identifiable assets.

An analysis of the cash flow in respect of the acquisition of IVS is as
follows:

44. % G w)

RWEAS  HFTEFHNERK
B H AT E A 49,354,000 7T °
BTEFNERERBTNEEH
4 %8 /549,379,000 7T » H AR
25,0008 TR TEHA{E B XK -

RUEEHER - IVSIEERER D
FEMEAIEEREREIVSH 3
MEEFBEPIENLIIME -

WEBIVSEHE RO T

HK$'000
TAET

Cash consideration B RE (128,975)
Cash and bank balances of the subsidiary M B A B IR & K 3R 17 45 £k 27,172
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included RERHReREENE SR
in cash flows from investing activities ReEEWRE FE (101,803)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in cash REEHHEERNEENHRESZE
flows from operating activities R 5 KA (2,758)
(104,561]
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45. Events after the reporting period

Rights issue

On 14 January 2020, the Company proposes to raise a gross proceeds,
before expenses, of up to approximately HK$3,729 million, by way of a
rights issue of not less than 1,919,219,266 rights shares but not more
than 2,571,891,028 rights shares to the qualifying shareholders on
the basis of one rights share for every 3 existing shares held on the
record date 7 February 2020 at a price of HK$1.45 per rights share.

On 17 March 2020 a total of 1,919,219,266 shares have been allotted.
The gross proceeds raised from the rights issue are approximately
HK$2,782.87 million before expenses.

Impact of outbreak of Coronavirus

Since early January 2020, the coronavirus pandemic has spread
globally, causing disruption to business and economic activity. This may
affect the fair value of the financial assets and loans and advances
to customers of the Group. The degree of the impact depends on the
duration of the pandemic, the implementation of preventive measures
and fiscal easing policies posted by the impacted countries.

Global stock markets in early 2020 have been adversely affected by
concerns over the outbreak of coronavirus, resulting in increasing
volatility and substantial decline. As the situation is rapidly evolving,
we do not consider it practicable to provide a quantitative estimate
of the potential impact of this outbreak on the Group. The Group will
continue monitoring the situation and actively react to the impacts to
the Group's financial position and operating results.

Such impact is a non-adjusting event after the financial year end
and does not result in any adjustments to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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46. A2 ] B 5 IR P 3R
A B A2 R 3R o B R 0 B R

46. Statement of financial position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

MERWERT

2019 2018
— —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries LEKNE AT 7,823,934 7,690,956
_Deferred tax assets BEEHELE I 1
7,823,935 7,690,957
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE - 1R & KAt B
receivables NIE 10,413 13,311
Amount due from subsidiaries A NG E ] 6,537,278 3,695,933
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEEY 4,020 6,606
_Total current assets RBREMSE 6,551,711 3,715,850
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable P&~ #IE (29) (26)
Other payables and accrued liabilities EMEMZKIBERETARG (71,371) (35,342)
Debt securities in issue BERITELEES (4,372,507) (2,694,443)
— At amortised cost — R (3.446,273) (2,577,411)
— Designated at fair value through - EERAFEFABZ
profit or loss (926,234) (117,032)
Tax payable &1~ Fi 18 (2,299) (3,480)
_Total current liabilities RBREAE (4.446,206)  (2733291)
_Net current assets RBRERE 2105505 ¢ 982,559
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Debt securities in issue BEEITEKES
T Atamortised cost — BREHAA (1555874) =
Net assets EEFHE 8,373,566 8,673,516
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46. Statement of financial position of the Company 46. A2 w] % AR ¥ % 2

(continued)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F@&xT Tt
Equity ¥
Share capital [N 8,116,887 8,116,887
Currency translation reserve (note) & G (M aE) 187 =
Share-based compensation reserve U REREERE 56,089 66,186
— Share option reserve (note) — B E (KT 30,513 37,816
— Share award reserve (note) — B 1 52 B & 1 (BT 3T) 25,576 28,370
Shares held under the share award B R EAETHERN
scheme (note) A% 1 (Bt &%) (73,058) (142,051)
Retained profits (note) R & A (KT &) 273,461 281,710
Equity attributable to holders of TERFAEARLER
ordinary shares 8,373,566 8,322,732
Equity attributable to holders of Hih#Em TARFE ARG
other equity instrument = - 350,784
Total equity AR 8,373,566 8,673,516
Dr. YIM Fung Mr. LI Guangjie
L EXRNKE
Director Director
EE EE
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46. Statement of financial position of the Company 46. A/ ] B %Ak 9L % )

(continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

B

ARBEBERENT :

Share held
Currency Share Share  under the
translation option award share award Retained
reserve reserve reserve scheme profits
AR ]
BlkiE  ROZB  HE
1 @ FEORG  f i 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TET THET
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ—\F—A—H - 40,769 24,204 (181,281) 426,200 309,892
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR 2 &K &= £ 58 - - - - 477,033 477,033
Recognition of equity-settled share- BRANESFTEARR A
based payments (notes 32 and 33) EL0E A0 19 30 (B 53212 33) - 5,297 69,471 - - 74,768
Purchases of shares held under the share BB RIER D E@MEEE
award scheme (note 34) #RR 13 (B =£34) - - - (52,579) - (52,579)
Vesting of shares for the share award &t % By st & 5B B R 7
scheme (notes 33 and 34) (3 7E335%34) - - (65,305) 91,809 (30,364) (3,860)
Shares issued upon exercise of share R S ETTE R MR
options under the share option scheme &7 H R G (Ff5£32)
(note 32) - (3.771) - - - (3,771)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the B A% 48 55 2k i &8 28 B % 4
forfeiture of share options i - (4,479) - - 4479 -
Final dividend paid for 2017 YH-F-—tFRERES - - — — (343,960 (343,960)
Interim dividend paid for 2018 (note 10) XN =T—N\FHHRE
(Bt 3E10) - = - - (251678)  (251,678)
- 37816 28,370 (142,051) 281,710 205,845
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of the Company 46. A2 ] B %R K #)

46. Statement of financial position
(continued)

Note: (continued) fax: (&)
Share held
Share Share  under the

option

Currency
Retained
profits

translation award share award

reserve reserve reserve

CEd

EJr%JIE\‘T
AR R E & A @t

Ll Mg BROZEH

fef 2 & Fif
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER

HK$'000
TR

HK$'00
TR

HK$'000
TR

304

At 31 December 2018 and

RZF-NFE+=-A=+—A

1 January 2019 k=—Z-nF—R—H - 37,816 28,370 (142,051) 281,710 205,845
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZE Kz L8 187 - - - 481,502 481,689
Perpetual securities repurchase/ KEEZEHER/BERE

redemption - - - - (12,914) (12,914)
Recognition of equity-settled share- BARNERETEURR A

based payments (notes 32 and 33) E Y 30 (B 7E32]233) - 6,798 57,325 - - 64,123
Purchases of shares held under the share BB RIER D E@HEHE

award scheme (note 34) ) B £ (Fif 534) - - - (4,004) - (4,004)
Vesting of shares for the share award Bth R By et &l BB R

scheme (notes 33 and 34) (B &%335%34) - - (60,119) 72,997 (16,632) (3.754)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the & B 4 2% 2 I & 3% 08 IR 1

forfeiture of share options #E - (14,101) - - 14,101 -
Final dividend paid for 2018 (note 10) IH-_FE-NEXRHBKE

(F#5£10) - - - - (152,995 (152,995
Interim dividend paid for 2019 (note 10) XN =F—AFFHKRE

(F#5£10) - - - - (321,311)  (321,311)
At 31 December 2019 RIZE-NF+-A=+—H 187 30,513 25,576 (73,058) 273,461 256,679
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